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PART I
As used throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”), unless the context otherwise indicates,
the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “Tivity Health,” or the “Company” refer collectively to Tivity Health, Inc. and its whollyowned subsidiaries.
Item 1. Business
Overview
Tivity Health, Inc. (the “Company”) was founded and incorporated in Delaware in 1981. Through our three
programs, SilverSneakers® senior fitness, Prime® Fitness and WholeHealth LivingTM, we are focused on advancing
long-lasting health and vitality, especially in aging populations. The SilverSneakers senior fitness program is offered
to members of Medicare Advantage and Medicare Supplement plans. We also offer Prime Fitness, a fitness facility
access program, through commercial health plans, employers, and other sponsoring organizations. Our national
network of fitness centers delivers both SilverSneakers and Prime Fitness. In addition, a small portion of our
fitness center network is available for discounted access through our WholeHealth Living program. Our fitness
networks encompass approximately 16,000 partner locations and more than 1,000 alternative locations that provide
classes outside of traditional fitness centers. Through ourr WholeHealth Living program, which we sell primarily to
health plans, we offer a continuum of services related to complementary, alternative, and physical medicine. Our
WholeHealth Living network includes relationships with approximately 80,000 complementary, alternative, and
physical medicine practitioners to serve individuals through health plans and employers who seek health services
such as chiropractic care, acupuncture, physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech therapy, and more.
Effective July 31, 2016, we sold our total population health services (“TPHS”) business to Sharecare, Inc.
(“Sharecare”). Results of operations for the TPHS business have been classified as discontinued operations for all
periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.
The Company is headquartered at 701 Cool Springs Boulevard, Franklin, Tennessee 37067.
Pending Acquisition of Nutrisystem
On December 9, 2018, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Nutrisystem, Inc. (“Nutrisystem”) and Sweet Acquisition, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tivity Health (“Merger
Sub”). The Merger Agreement provides, among other things, that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set
forth therein, Merger Sub will merge with and into Nutrisystem, with Nutrisystem surviving as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tivity Health (the “Merger”).
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the effective time of the Merger (the “Effective
Time”), each share of common stock, par value $.001 per share, of Nutrisystem issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than shares as to which appraisal rights have been properly
exercised and certain other excluded shares) will be converted into the right to receive (i) $38.75 in cash, without
interest, and (ii) 0.2141 shares of common stock of Tivity Health, with cash payable in lieu of fractional shares of
common stock of Tivity Health. The Merger is expected to be completed during the first quarter of 2019 and is
subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions including the adoption of the Merger Agreement by
Nutrisystem’s stockholders.
In connection with the Merger Agreement, on December 9, 2018, Tivity Health entered into a debt commitment
letter and corresponding fee letters (the “Debt Commitment Letter”) with Credit Suisse AG (“CS”), and Credit Suisse
Loan Funding LLC (“CSLF”). On December 21, 2018, December 26, 2018, December 27, 2018, December 31,
2018 and January 4, 2019, the Debt Commitment Letter was amended to add SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc.
(“STRH”), SunTrust Bank (“SunTrust”), Citigroup Global Markets Inc., on behalf of itself and Citibank, N.A., Citicorp
USA, Inc., Citicorp North America, Inc. and affiliates thereof, (“CGMI”), Citizens Bank, N.A. (“Citizens”), Fifth Third
Bank (“Fifth Third”), Regions Bank (“Regions Bank”), Regions Capital Markets, a division of Regions Bank,
(“Regions Capital Markets”), and Goldman Sachs Bank USA, together with its affiliates, including Goldman Sachs
Lending Partners LLC, (“GS,” and collectively with CS, CSLF, STRH, SunTrust, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third,
Regions Bank, Regions Capital Markets and each of their respective affiliates, the “Commitment Parties”), as
Commitment Parties under the Debt Commitment Letter and to adjust correspondingly each Commitment Party’s
commitment with respect to the financing contemplated thereby.
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Under the Debt Commitment Letter, among other things, CSLF, STRH, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions
Capital Markets and GS have committed to arrange, and CS, SunTrust, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions Bank
and GS have committed to provide, subject to terms and conditions set forth in the Debt Commitment Letter, a
senior secured term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of $1,210,000,000 and a senior secured
revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of $125,000,000 (collectively, the “Financing”). The
Financing will be secured by a first priority security interest and lien on substantially all of the assets of Tivity Health
and its wholly-owned material domestic subsidiaries.
The Commitment Parties’ commitments pursuant to the Debt Commitment Letter are subject to various
conditions, including consummation of the Merger in accordance with the Merger Agreement; the negotiation and
execution of definitive documentation consistent with the Debt Commitment Letter; delivery of certain audited,
unaudited and pro forma financial statements; the absence of a material adverse effect on Nutrisystem after
December 9, 2018; the accuracy of representations and warranties of Nutrisystem in the Merger Agreement and
specified representations and warranties of Tivity Health to be set forth in the definitive loan documents; the
repayment of all outstanding indebtedness and other obligations of Tivity Health and Nutrisystem under their
existing credit facilities; and other customary closing conditions.
Customer Contracts
Our customer contracts generally have initial terms of approximately three years. Some of our contracts allow
the customer to terminate early and/or determine on an annual basis to which of their members they will offer our
programs.
Business Strategy
Our “A-B-C-D” strategy, which leverages both our traditional physical footprint and developing digital platforms,
is designed to (A) add new members in our three existing networks - SilverSneakers, Prime Fitness and
WholeHealth Living, (B) build engagement and participation among our current eligible members, (C) collaborate
with partners to add new products and services that will leverage the value of our brand, and (D) deepen
relationships with our partners and their instructors within our national network. In addition to the A-B-C-D strategy,
we are focused on supporting the ability of our health plan customers to meet the needs of their members as well
as providing a valuable service to improve the health and well-being of the consumers we serve through our
networks and with our programs. Additionally, throughout 2017 and 2018, we undertook a comprehensive review of
“Strategy E” as a means to define opportunities for long-term growth of the Company that would leverage our
current assets. Strategy E culminated in our pending acquisition of Nutrisystem that is described above under “—
Pending Acquisition of Nutrisystem.” We believe the opportunity to address nutrition, physical activity, and
loneliness in a holistic manner will place Tivity Health in a unique position to address a meaningful portion of
healthcare costs.
We engage and support our members based on the needs and preferences of our customers. Within our
fitness networks, we have approximately 16,000 partner locations and more than 1,000 alternative locations that
provide classes outside of traditional fitness centers. More than 15,000 of these partner locations within the
national network provide access to SilverSneakers members, and more than 11,000 of these locations offer access
to Prime Fitness members.
Segment and Major Customer Information
We have one operating and reportable segment. During 2018, Humana, Inc. (“Humana”), United Healthcare,
Inc. (“United Healthcare”), and Blue Cross Blue Shield Association (“BCBSA”) each comprised more than 10%, and
together comprised approximately 45%, of our revenues from continuing operations. Our primary contract with
Humana was renewed in 2018 and continues through December 31, 2022. Our primary contract with United
Healthcare continues through December 31, 2020. Our primary contract with BCBSA, which relates to our Prime
Fitness business, continues through December 31, 2022. No other customer accounted for 10% or more of our
revenues from continuing operations in 2018. See Note 17 to the notes to consolidated financial statements
included in this report relating to revenues from external customers and customer concentration.
Competition
The healthcare industry is highly competitive, and the manner in which services are provided is subject to
continual change. Other entities, whose financial and marketing resources may exceed our resources, may choose
to initiate or expand programs in competition with our offerings.
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We believe we have certain advantages over our competitors such as our proprietary class programming; the
brand recognition of programs such as SilverSneakers; the depth and breadth of ourr fitness center network
relationships, which encompass approximately 16,000 partner locations; and the trusting connections with our
members developed over more than 25 years that have generated nearly 700 million member visits to partner
locations since 2001. However, we cannot assure you that we can compete effectively with other entities who
provide similar services.
Industry Integration and Consolidation
Consolidation remains an important factor in all aspects off the healthcare industry. While we believe the size of
our membership base provides us with the economies off scale to compete even in a consolidating market, we
cannot assure you that we can effectively compete with companies formed as a result of industry consolidation or
that we can retain existing customers if they are acquired by other entities that already have or contract for
programs similar to ours or are not interested in our programs.
Governmental Regulation
Governmental regulation impacts us in a number of ways in addition to those regulatory risks presented under
Item 1A. “Risk Factors” below.
Health Reform
In recent years, Congress and certain state governments have passed a large number of laws and regulations
intended to result in major changes within the healthcare system. The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act,
as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively, the “ACA”), the most
prominent of these efforts, changes how healthcare services are covered, delivered, and reimbursed through,
among other things, expanded health insurance coverage, reduced growth in Medicare program spending and the
establishment of programs that tie reimbursement to care quality and value.
The ACA, as currently structured, contains provisions that affect our customers, including commercial health
plans and Medicare Advantage programs. The ACA has decreased the number of uninsured individuals and
expanded coverage through the expansion of public programs and private sector health insurance. However, the
ACA also may increase costs and/or reduce the revenues of our customers or prospective customers. For example,
the ACA prohibits commercial health plans from using gender, health status, family history, or occupation to set
premium rates, eliminates pre-existing condition exclusions, and bans annual benefit limits. In addition, the ACA
established uniform minimum medical loss ratios (“MLRs”) for health plans, requiring a minimum percentage of
health coverage premium revenue to be spent on healthcare medical costs and quality improvement expenses. The
ACA also reduced premium payments to Medicare Advantage plans such that the managed care per capita
payments paid by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) to Medicare Advantage plans are
now, on average, approximately equal to those for traditional Medicare. While the ACA provides for bonuses to
Medicare Advantage plans that achieve service benchmarks and quality ratings, overall payments to Medicare
Advantage plans have been significantly reduced under the ACA.
There is substantial uncertainty regarding the ongoing effects of the ACA because the presidential
administration and Congress have made significant changes to the ACA, its implementation and its interpretation.
The President has signed an executive order that directs agencies to minimize “economic and regulatory burdens”
of the ACA. Final rules issued in 2018 expand the availability of association health plans and allow the sale of
short-term, limited-duration health plans, neither of which are required to cover all of the essential benefits
mandated by the ACA. Effective January 2019, Congress eliminated the financial penalty associated with the
ACA’s individual mandate. In December 2018, a federal court in Texas ruled that the entire ACA was
unconstitutional because the penalty associated with the individual mandate was eliminated. However, the law
remains in effect pending appeal. It is difficult to predict whether, when or how the ACA will be further changed,
what alternative provisions, if any, will be enacted, the timing of implementation of any alternative provisions, the
impact of alternative provisions on providers and other healthcare industry participants, and the ultimate outcome
and impact of court challenges. The healthcare industry remains subject to ongoing health reform initiatives. For
example, beginning in 2020, the Creating High-quality Results and Outcomes Necessary to Improve Chronic
(CHRONIC) Care Act of 2018 (“Chronic Care Act”) will allow Medicare Advantage plans to cover supplemental
benefits that are not primarily health-related, but that have the reasonable expectation of improving or maintaining
health. Members of Congress have also proposed measures that would expand government-sponsored coverage,
including single-payor proposals.
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Other Laws
While many of the governmental and regulatory requirements affecting healthcare delivery generally do not
directly apply to us, our customers must comply with a variety of regulations including those governing Medicare
Advantage plans and their marketing and the licensing and reimbursement requirements of federal, state and local
agencies. Certain of our services, including health service utilization management and certain claims payment
functions, require licensure by state government agencies. We are subject to a variety of legal requirements in
order to obtain and maintain such licenses.
Federal privacy regulations issued pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(“HIPAA”) extensively restrict the use and disclosure of individually-identifiable health information by health plans,
most healthcare providers, and certain other entities (collectively, “covered entities”). Federal security regulations
issued pursuant to HIPAA require covered entities to implement and maintain administrative, physical and technical
safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of electronic individually-identifiable health
information. Because we handle individually-identifiable health information on behalf of covered entities, we are
considered a "business associate" and are required to comply with most aspects of the HIPAA privacy and security
regulations.
Violations of HIPAA and its implementing regulations may result in criminal penalties and in substantial civil
penalties for each violation. These penalties are updated annually based on changes to the consumer price index.
In addition, we may be contractually or directly obligated to comply with any applicable state laws or regulations
related to the confidentiality and security of confidential personal information. In the event of a data breach involving
individually-identifiable health information, we are subject to contractual obligations and state and federal
requirements that require us to notify our customers. These requirements may also require us or our customers to
notify affected individuals, regulatory agencies, and the media of the data breach. Non-permitted uses and
disclosures of unsecured individually identifiable health information are presumed to be breaches for which notice is
required, unless it can be demonstrated that there is a low probability the information has been compromised.
Federal law contains various prohibitions related to false statements and false claims, some of which apply to
private payors as well as federal programs. Our contracts with Medicare Advantage plans may subject us to a
number of obligations, including billing and reimbursement requirements, prohibitions on fraudulent and abusive
conduct and related training and screening obligations. Actions may be brought under the federal False Claims Act
by the government as well as by private individuals, known as “whistleblowers,” who are permitted to share in any
settlement or judgment. Liability under the federal False Claims Act arises when an entity knowingly submits a false
claim for reimbursement to the federal government. The federal False Claims Act defines the term “knowingly”
broadly. There are many other potential bases for liability under the federal False Claims Act, including knowingly
and improperly avoiding repayment of an overpayment received from the government and the knowing failure to
report and return an overpayment within 60 days of identifying the overpayment. The submission of claims for
services or items generated in violation of certain “fraud and abuse” provisions of the Social Security Act, including
the anti-kickback provisions, constitutes a false or fraudulent claim under the federal False Claims Act. In some
cases, whistleblowers, the federal government, and some courts have taken the position that entities that allegedly
have violated other statutes, such as the federal self-referral prohibition commonly known as the Stark Law, have
thereby submitted false claims under the federal False Claims Act.
From time to time, participants in the healthcare industry, including our company and our customers, may be
subject to actions under the federal False Claims Act or other fraud and abuse laws, including similar state statutes,
and it is not possible to predict the impact of such actions. Violations of applicable laws may result in significant civil
and criminal penalties. For example, violations of the federal False Claims Act may result in penalties of three times
the actual damages sustained by the government, plus substantial mandatory civil penalties for each separate false
claim. These penalties are updated annually based on changes to the consumer price index.
Because of the international operations previously conducted as part of our TPHS business that we sold to
Sharecare in July 2016, we were subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (the “FCPA”) and similar antibribery laws of other countries in which we provided services prior to the sale. The FCPA and similar antibribery
laws generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments to government officials
or other third parties for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business or gaining any business advantage. Failure
to comply with the FCPA and similar legislation prior to the sale of our TPHS business could result in the imposition
of civil or criminal fines and penalties.
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Employees
As of February 22, 2019, we had approximately 500 employees. Our employees are not subject to any
collective bargaining agreements. We believe we have good relationships with our employees.
Available Information
Our Internet address is www.tivityhealth.com. We make available free of charge, on or through our Internet
website, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material
with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). The SEC maintains an Internet site that
contains periodic reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
In the execution of our business strategy, our operations and financial condition are subject to certain risks. A
summary of certain material risks is provided below, and you should take such risks into account in evaluating any
investment decision involving the Company. This section does not describe all risks applicable to us and is
intended only as a summary of certain material factors that could impact our operations in the industry in which we
operate. Other sections of this report contain additional information concerning these and other risks.
Risks Relating to Our Business
A significant percentage of our revenues is derived from health plan customers.
A significant percentage of our revenues is derived from health plan customers. The health plan industry may
continue to consolidate, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to retain health plan customers, or continue
to provide our products and services to such health plan customers on terms at least as favorable to us as currently
provided, if they are acquired by other health plans that already participate in competing programs or are not
interested in our programs. Increasing vertical integration efforts involving health plans and healthcare providers or
entities that provide wellness services may increase these challenges. Our health plan customers that are part of
larger healthcare enterprises may have greater bargaining power, which may lead to further pressure on the prices
for our products and services. In addition, a reduction in the number of covered lives enrolled with our health plan
customers or in the payments we receive could adversely affect our results of operations. Our health plan
customers are subject to continuing competition and reduced reimbursement rates from governmental and private
sources, which could lead current or prospective customers to seek reduced fees or choose to reduce or delay the
purchase of our services. Finally, health plan customers could attempt to offer services themselves that compete
directly with our offerings, stop providing our offerings to certain or all of their members, or offer fitness benefits in
addition to SilverSneakers, which could adversely affect our business and results of operations.
We currently derive a significant percentage of our revenues from three customers.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, Humana, United Healthcare, and BCBSA each comprised more than
10%, and together comprised approximately 45%, of our revenues from continuing operations. Our primary contract
with Humana was renewed in 2018 and continues through December 31, 2022. The term of our contract with
United Healthcare continues through December 31, 2020. Our primary contract with BCBSA continues through
December 31, 2022. The loss or restructuring of a contract with Humana, United Healthcare, BCBSA, or any of our
other significant customers could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. None
of these contracts allows Humana, United Healthcare, or BCBSA to terminate for convenience prior to the
expiration of the contract.
In 2018 and 2019, United Healthcare discontinued offering SilverSneakers to its individual Medicare Advantage
beneficiaries in certain states and instead provided those beneficiaries a fitness benefit offered by its wholly-owned
subsidiary Optum, while continuing to offer SilverSneakers to its group Medicare Advantage members in all 50
states. Revenue from United Healthcare is expected to be in a range of $60 million to $62 million in 2019,
approximately one-third of which is expected to be earned from its individual Medicare Advantage business. We
expect that beginning in 2020 United Healthcare will offer SilverSneakers to its group Medicare Advantage
members only and will no longer offer SilverSneakers to its individual Medicare Advantage beneficiaries.
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Our inability to renew and/or maintain contracts with our customers and/or partner locations under existing
terms or restructure these contracts under favorable terms could adversely affect our business and results
of operations.
If our customers and/or partner locations choose not to renew their contracts with us, our business and results
of operations could be materially adversely affected. Loss of a significant partner or customer or a reduction in a
customer's enrolled lives could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. In
addition, a restructuring of a contract with a customer and/or partner on terms that aren’t favorable to us could
adversely affect our business and results of operations.
Reductions in Medicare Advantage health plan reimbursement rates may negatively impact our business
and results of operations.
A significant portion of our revenue is indirectly derived from the monthly premium payments paid by HHS to
health plans, who are our customers, for services provided to Medicare Advantage beneficiaries. As a result, our
results of operations are, in part, dependent on government funding levels for Medicare Advantage programs. Any
changes that limit or reduce Medicare Advantage reimbursement levels, such as reductions in or limitations of
reimbursement amounts or rates under these programs, reductions in funding of these programs, expansion of
benefits without adequate funding, elimination of coverage for certain benefits, or elimination of coverage affecting
the services that we provide, could have a material adverse effect on our customers, and as a result, on our
business and results of operations.
Our business strategy relating to the development and introduction of new products and services exposes
us to risks such as limited customer and/or market acceptance and additional expenditures that may not
result in additional net revenue.
An important component of our business strategy is to focus on new products and services that enable us to
provide immediate value to our customers. Customerr and/or market acceptance of these new products and
services cannot be predicted with certainty, and if we fail to execute properly on this strategy or to adapt this
strategy as market conditions evolve, our ability to grow revenue and our results of operations may be adversely
affected.
If we fail to successfully implement our business strategy, our financial performance and our growth could
be materially and adversely affected.
Our future financial performance and success are dependent in large part upon our ability to implement our
business strategy successfully. Implementation of our strategy will require effective management of our operational,
financial and human resources and will place significant demands on those resources. See Item 1. "Business –
Business Strategy" for more information regarding our business strategy. There are risks involved in pursuing our
strategy, including the ability to hire or retain the personnel necessary to manage our strategy effectively.
In addition to the risks set forth above, implementation off our business strategy could be affected by a number
of factors beyond our control, such as increased competition, legal developments, government regulation, general
economic conditions, increased operating costs or expenses, and changes in industry trends. We may decide to
alter or discontinue certain aspects of our business strategy at any time. If we are not able to implement our
business strategy successfully, our long-term growth and profitability may be adversely affected. Even if we are
able to implement some or all of the initiatives of our business strategy successfully, our operating results may not
improve to the extent we anticipate, or at all.
Our results of operations could be adversely affected by severe or unexpected weather, health epidemics
or outbreaks of disease.
Adverse weather conditions or other extreme changes in the weather may cause people to refrain, or prevent
people, from visiting participating locations and using our services. Additionally, widespread health epidemics or
outbreaks of disease, such as influenza, may cause members to avoid public gathering places and negatively
impact their use of our services. As some of the fees that we charge our customers are based on member
participation, a decrease in member participation could adversely affect our business and results of operations.
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We may experience difficulties associated with the implementation and/or integration of new businesses,
services (including outsourced services), technologies, solutions, or products.
We may face difficulties, costs, and delays in effectively implementing and/or integrating acquired businesses,
services (including outsourced services), technologies, solutions, or products into our business. Implementing
internally-developed solutions and products, and/or integrating newly acquired businesses, services (including
outsourced services), and technologies could be time-consuming and may strain our resources. Consequently, we
may not be successful in implementing and/or integrating these new businesses, services, technologies, solutions,
or products and may not achieve anticipated revenue and cost benefits.
Changes in macroeconomic conditions may adversely affect our business.
Economic difficulties and other macroeconomic conditions could reduce the demand and/or the timing of
purchases for certain of our services from customers and potential customers. In addition, changes in economic
conditions could create liquidity and credit constraints. We cannot assure you that we would be able to secure
additional financing if needed and, if such funds were available, that the terms and conditions would be acceptable
to us.
The performance of our business and the level of our indebtedness could prevent us from meeting the
obligations under our credit agreement or have an adverse effect on our future financial condition, our
ability to raise additional capital, or our ability to react to changes in the economy or our industry.
On April 21, 2017, we entered into a new Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with a group of lenders. As of December 31, 2018, outstanding debt under the Credit Agreement was $30.5 million.
Our ability to service our indebtedness will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. We cannot
assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be
available in an amount sufficient to enable us to service our indebtedness or to fund other liquidity needs.
The Credit Agreement contains various financial covenants and limits repurchases of our common stock and
the amount of dividends that we can pay to holders of ourr common stock. A breach of any of these covenants
could result in a default under the Credit Agreement in which all amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement
may become immediately due and payable and all commitments under the Credit Agreement to extend further
credit may be terminated.
Our indebtedness could adversely affect our future financial condition or our ability to react to changes in the
economy or industry by, among other things:
x

increasing our vulnerability to a downturn in general economic conditions, loss of revenue and/or profit
margins in our business, or to increases in interest rates, particularly with respect to the portion of our
outstanding debt that is subject to variable interest rates;

x

potentially limiting our ability to obtain additional financing or to obtain such financing on favorable terms;

x

causing us to dedicate a portion of future cash flow from operations to service or pay down our debt, which
reduces the cash available for other purposes, such as operations, capital expenditures, and future
business opportunities; and

x

possibly limiting our ability to adjust to changing market conditions and placing us at a competitive
disadvantage compared to our competitors who may be less leveraged.

We have a significant amount of goodwill and intangible assets, the value of which could become impaired.
We have recorded significant portions of the purchase price of certain acquisitions as goodwill and/or intangible
assets. At December 31, 2018, we had approximately $334.7 million and $29.0 million of goodwill and intangible
assets, respectively. We review goodwill and intangible assets not subject to amortization for impairment on an
annual basis (during the fourth quarter) or more frequently whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. If we determine that the carrying values of our goodwill and/or intangible
assets are impaired, we may incur a non-cash charge to earnings, which could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations for the period in which the impairment occurs.
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A failure of our information systems could adversely affect our business.
Our ability to deliver our services depends on effectively using information technology. We rely upon our
information systems for operating and monitoring all major aspects of our business. These systems and, therefore,
our operations could be damaged or interrupted by natural disasters, power loss, network failure, improper
operation by our employees, data privacy or security breaches, computer viruses, computer hacking, network
penetration or other illegal intrusions or other unexpected events. Any disruption in the operation of our information
systems, regardless of the cause, could adversely impact our operations, which may adversely affect our financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.
A cybersecurity incident could result in the loss of confidential data, give rise to remediation and other
expenses, expose us to liability under HIPAA, consumer protection laws, common law theories or other
laws, subject us to litigation and federal and state governmental inquiries, damage our reputation, and
otherwise be disruptive to our business.
The nature of our business involves the receipt, storage and use of personal data about the participants in our
programs, including individually identifiable health information, as well as employees and customers. Additionally,
we rely upon third parties that are not directly under our control to do so as well. The secure maintenance of this
confidential information is critical to our business operations. To protect our information systems from attack,
damage and unauthorized use, we have implemented multiple layers of security, including technical safeguards,
processes, and our people. Our defenses are monitored and routinely tested internally and by external parties.
Despite these efforts, threats from malicious persons and groups, new vulnerabilities, and advanced attacks
against information systems create risk off cybersecurity incidents. We cannot provide assurance that we or our
third-party vendors or other service providers will not be subject to cybersecurity incidents, which may result in
unauthorized access by third parties, loss, misappropriation, disclosure or corruption of customer, employee or our
information; member personal health information; or other data subject to privacy laws. Such cybersecurity incidents
may lead to a disruption in our systems or business, costs to modify, enhance, or remediate our cybersecurity
measures, liability under privacy, security and consumer protection laws or litigation under these or other laws,
including common law theories, and subject us to enforcement actions, fines, regulatory proceedings or
litigation against us, damage to our business reputation, a reduction in participation and sales of our products and
services, and legal obligations to notify customers or otherr affected individuals about an incident, which could cause
us to incur substantial costs and negative publicity, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations and harm our business reputation.
As a result, cybersecurity and the continued development and enhancement of our controls, processes and
practices remain a priority for us. We may be required to expend significant additional resources in our efforts to
modify or enhance our protective measures against evolving threats or to investigate and remediate any
cybersecurity vulnerabilities.
Our business is subject to changing privacy and security laws, rules and regulations, including HIPAA, the
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards, the Telephone Consumer Protection Act and other state
privacy regulations, for which failure to adhere could negatively impact our business.
Our business is subject to various privacy and data security laws, regulations, and codes of conduct that apply
to our various business units (e.g., Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards and Telephone Consumer
Protection Act). These laws and regulations may be inconsistent across jurisdictions and are subject to evolving
and differing (sometimes conflicting) interpretations. Government regulators, privacy advocates and class action
attorneys are increasingly scrutinizing how companies collect, process, use, store, share and transmit personal
data. This increased scrutiny may result in new interpretations of existing laws, thereby further impacting our
business. For example, in June 2018, the State of California passed the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018
(“CCPA”), which takes effect January 1, 2020. The new law applies broadly to information that identifies or is
associated with any California household or individual, and compliance with the new law requires that we
implement several operational changes, including processes to respond to individuals’ data access and deletion
requests. Additionally, the Federal Trade Commission and many state attorneys general are interpreting federal
and state consumer protection laws to impose standards for the collection, use, dissemination and security of data.
The obligations imposed by the CCPA and other similar laws that may be enacted at the federal and state level
may require us to modify our business practices and policies and to incur substantial expenditures in order to
comply.
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In order to be successful, we must attract, engage, retain and integrate key employees and have adequate
succession plans in place, and failure to do so could have an adverse effect on our ability to manage our
business.
Our success depends, in large part, on our ability to attract, engage, retain and integrate qualified executives
and other key employees throughout all areas of our business. Identifying, developing internally or hiring externally,
training and retaining highly-skilled managerial and other personnel are critical to our future, and competition for
experienced employees can be intense. Failure to successfully hire executives and key employees or the loss of
any executives and key employees could have a significant impact on our operations. The loss of services of any
key personnel, the inability to retain and attract qualified personnel in the future, or delays in hiring may harm our
business and results of operations. Further, changes in our management team may be disruptive to our business,
and any failure to successfully integrate key newly hired employees could adversely affect our business and results
of operations.
We face competition for staffing, which may increase our labor costs and reduce profitability.
We compete with other healthcare and services providers in recruiting qualified management, including
executives with the required skills and experience to operate and grow our business, and staff personnel for the
day-to-day operations of our business. These challenges may require us to enhance wages and benefits to recruit
and retain qualified management and other professionals. Difficulties in attracting and retaining qualified
management and other professionals, or in controlling laborr costs, could have a material adverse effect on our
profitability.
We are or may become a party to litigation that could potentially force us to pay significant damages and/or
harm our reputation.
We are subject to certain legal proceedings, which potentially involve large claims and significant defense costs
(see Item 3. "Legal Proceedings"). These legal proceedings and any other claims that we may face in the future,
whether with or without merit, could result in costly litigation, and divert the time, attention, and resources of our
management. Although we currently maintain various types of liability insurance, we cannot provide assurance that
the coverage limits of such insurance policies will be adequate or that all such claims will be covered by insurance.
Although we believe that we have conducted our operations in full compliance with applicable statutory and
contractual requirements and that we have meritorious defenses to outstanding claims, it is possible that resolution
of these legal matters could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition, legal expenses
associated with the defense of these matters may be material to our results of operations in a particular financial
reporting period.
Damage to our reputation could harm our business, including our competitive position and business
prospects.
Our ability to attract and retain customers, members and employees is impacted by our reputation. Harm to our
reputation can arise from various sources, including employee misconduct, security breaches, unethical behavior,
litigation or regulatory outcomes, which could, among other consequences, increase the size and number of
litigation claims and damages asserted or subject us to enforcement actions, fines and penalties and cause us to
incur related costs and expenses.
We could be adversely affected by violations of the FCPA and similar anti-bribery laws of other countries in
which we provided services prior to the sale of our TPHS business.
Because of the international operations that we previously conducted as part of our TPHS business that we
sold to Sharecare in July 2016, we could be adversely affected by violations of the FCPA and similar anti-bribery
laws of other countries in which we provided services prior to the sale. The FCPA and similar anti-bribery laws
generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments to government officials or
other third parties for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business or gaining any business advantage. While our
policies mandated compliance with these anti-bribery laws, we cannot provide assurance that our internal control
policies and procedures always protected us from reckless or criminal acts committed by our employees,
contractors or agents. Failure to comply with the FCPA and similar legislation prior to the sale of our TPHS
business could result in the imposition of civil or criminal fines and penalties and could disrupt our business and
adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
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Compliance with existing or newly adopted federal and state laws and regulations or new or revised
interpretations of such requirements could adversely affect our results of operations or may require us to
spend substantial amounts, and the failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could subject us
to penalties or negatively impact our ability to provide services.
Our customers are subject to considerable state and federal government regulation, and a substantial majority
of our business involves providing services to Medicare Advantage beneficiaries. As a result, we are subject
directly to various federal laws and regulations, including the federal False Claims Act, billing and reimbursement
requirements and other provisions related to fraud and abuse. The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services is in
the process of expanding its Recovery Audit Contractor program for Medicare Advantage, which may result in
increased government enforcement. Further, our contracts with Medicare Advantage plans require us to comply
with a number of regulatory provisions and permit these customers to perform compliance audits. Many of these
regulations are vaguely written and subject to differing interpretations that may, in certain cases, result in
unintended consequences that could impact our ability to effectively deliver services. Further, we are required to
comply with most requirements of the HIPAA privacy and security laws and regulations and may be subject to
criminal or civil penalties for violations of these regulations. Certain of our services, including health utilization
management and certain claims payment functions, require licensure and may be regulated by government
agencies. We are subject to a variety of legal requirements in order to obtain and maintain such licenses, but little
guidance is available to determine the scope of some of these requirements.
We continually monitor the extent to which federal and state legislation and regulations govern our operations.
New federal or state laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing requirements that affect our operations
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. If we are found to have violated applicable laws,
to have caused any of our customers to submit false claims or make false statements, orr to have failed to comply
with our contractual compliance obligations, we could be required to restructure our operations, be subject to
contractual penalties, including termination of our customer agreements, and be subject to significant civil and
criminal penalties.
Healthcare reform efforts may result in a reduction to our revenues from government health programs and
private insurance companies or otherwise directly or indirectly impact our business.
The healthcare industry is subject to various political, regulatory, scientific, and technological influences. Efforts
at federal and state levels of government have resulted in laws and regulations intended to effect significant change
within the healthcare system. The ACA, the most prominent of these efforts, affects coverage, delivery, and
reimbursement of healthcare services. Among other effects, several of its provisions may increase the costs and/or
reduce the revenues of our customers or prospective customers. For example, the ACA eliminates pre-existing
condition exclusions by commercial health plans, bans annual benefit limits, and mandates minimum MLRs for
health plans.
However, there is substantial uncertainty regarding the net effect and future of the ACA. The presidential
administration and Congress have made significant changes to the ACA, its implementation and its interpretation.
The president signed an executive order that directs agencies to minimize “economic and regulatory burdens” of
the ACA. Final rules issued in 2018 expand the availability off association health plans and allow the sale of shortterm, limited-duration health plans, neither of which are required to cover all of the essential benefits mandated by
the ACA. Further, effective January 2019, Congress eliminated the penalty associated with the ACA’s individual
mandate. As a result, a federal court in Texas ruled in December 2018 that, because the penalty associated with
the individual mandate was eliminated, the entire ACA was unconstitutional. However, the law remains in effect
pending appeal. It is possible that the reforms imposed by the ACA or uncertainty regarding significant changes or
court challenges to the law will adversely affect the profitability of our customers and cause our customers or
prospective customers to reduce or delay the purchase of our services or to demand reduced fees. Because of this
uncertainty and many other variables, including the ACA’s complexity and the difficulty of predicting the impact of
changes on other healthcare industry participants and the ultimate outcome of court challenges, we are unable to
predict all of the ways in which the ACA could impact the Company. Furthermore, we could also be impacted by
future legislative and regulatory healthcare reform initiatives. For example, beginning in 2020, the Chronic Care Act
will allow Medicare Advantage plans to cover supplemental benefits that are not primarily health-related, but that
have the reasonable expectation of improving or maintaining health. Members of Congress have proposed
measures that would expand government-sponsored coverage, including single-payor proposals.
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Risks Relating to the Proposed Acquisition of Nutrisystem
After completion of the Merger, we may fail to realize the anticipated benefits and cost savings of the
Merger, which could adversely affect the value of our common stock.
The success of the Merger will depend, in part, on our ability to realize the anticipated benefits and cost savings
from combining the business of Nutrisystem with our business. Our ability to realize these anticipated benefits and
cost savings is subject to certain risks including:
x

our ability to combine successfully the business of Nutrisystem with our business, including with respect to
systems and technology integration;

x

whether the combined businesses will perform as expected;

x

the possibility that we paid more for Nutrisystem than the value we will derive from the acquisition;

x

the reduction of our cash available for operations and other uses and the incurrence of indebtedness to
finance the acquisition; and

x

the assumption of known and unknown liabilities of Nutrisystem.

If we are not able to successfully combine the business of Nutrisystem with our business within the anticipated
time frame, or at all, the anticipated cost savings and other benefits of the Merger may not be realized fully or at all
or may take longer to realize than expected, the combined businesses may not perform as expected and the value
of our common stock may be adversely affected.
We and Nutrisystem have operated and, until completion of the Merger, will continue to operate, independently,
and we cannot provide assurances that our and Nutrisystem’s businesses can be integrated successfully. It is
possible that the integration process could result in the loss of key employees, the disruption of either company’s,
or both companies’ ongoing businesses or in unexpected integration issues, higher than expected integration costs
and an overall post-completion integration process that takes longer than originally anticipated. Specifically, issues
that must be addressed in integrating the operations of Nutrisystem with our operations in order to realize the
anticipated benefits of the Merger so the combined business performs as expected include, among other things:
x

integrating the companies’ technologies, products and services;

x

identifying and eliminating redundant and underperforming operations and assets;

x

harmonizing the companies’ operating practices, employee development and compensation programs,
internal controls and other policies, procedures and processes;

x

addressing possible differences in business backgrounds, corporate cultures and management
philosophies;

x

consolidating the companies’ corporate, administrative and information technology infrastructure;

x

coordinating sales, distribution and marketing efforts;

x

maintaining existing agreements with customers and suppliers and avoiding delays in entering into new
agreements with prospective customers and suppliers; and

x

coordinating geographically dispersed organizations.

In addition, at times, the attention of certain members of either company’s, or both companies’ management
and resources may be focused on completion of the Mergerr and the integration of the business of the two
companies and diverted from day-to-day business operations, which may disrupt either company’s or both
companies’ ongoing business and the business of the combined company.
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We and Nutrisystem may have difficulty attracting, motivating and retaining executives and other key
employees in light of the Merger.
Uncertainty about the effect of the Merger on our and Nutrisystem’s employees may have an adverse effect on
us and Nutrisystem and consequently the combined business. This uncertainty may impair our and Nutrisystem’s
ability to attract, retain and motivate key personnel until the Merger is completed and during the integration phase
thereafter. Employee retention may be particularly challenging during the pendency of the Merger, as our and
Nutrisystem’s employees may experience uncertainty about their future roles with the combined business.
Additionally, Nutrisystem’s officers and employees may hold shares of Nutrisystem common stock or vested
options to purchase shares of Nutrisystem common stock and, if the Merger is completed, may therefore be entitled
to the Merger Consideration in respect of such shares of Nutrisystem common stock and cash consideration in
respect of such stock options, the receipt of which could lead certain officers and employees to no longer pursue
employment with the combined business. Additionally, pursuant to employment agreements and equity award
agreements with Nutrisystem and letter agreements with us, certain key employees of Nutrisystem are entitled to
receive severance payments and equity vesting acceleration benefits upon a termination of employment for “good
reason” following completion of the Merger. Severance payments and equity vesting acceleration benefits that
could be attained in connection with a “good reason” termination could lead those key employees to terminate
employment with the combined business iff there is a basis for them to claim that their employment was terminated
for “good reason.” Furthermore, if our or Nutrisystem’s key employees depart, including because of issues relating
to the uncertainty and difficulty of integration, financial security or a desire not to become employees of the
combined business, we may have to incur significant costs in identifying, hiring and retaining replacements for
departing employees, and our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger may be adversely affected.
The Merger is subject to the receipt of approval from Nutrisystem stockholders as to the Merger
Agreement. Failure to obtain this approval would prevent the closing of the Merger.
Before the Merger can be completed, Nutrisystem stockholders must adopt the Merger Agreement. We cannot
provide assurance that this approval will be obtained. Failure to obtain the required approval may result in a
material delay in, or the abandonment of, the Merger. Any delay in completing the Merger may materially adversely
affect the timing and amount of cost savings and other benefits that are expected to be achieved from the Merger.
Our and Nutrisystem’s business relationships may be subject to disruption due to uncertainty associated
with the Merger.
Parties with which we or Nutrisystem do business may experience uncertainty associated with the transaction,
including with respect to current or future business relationships with us, Nutrisystem or the combined business.
Our and Nutrisystem’s business relationships may be subject to disruption as customers, suppliers and others may
attempt to negotiate changes in existing business relationships or consider entering into business relationships with
parties other than us, Nutrisystem or the combined business. These disruptions could have an adverse effect on
the business, financial condition, results of operations orr prospects of the combined business, including an adverse
effect on our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger. The adverse effect of such disruptions could be
exacerbated by a delay in completion of the Merger or termination of the Merger Agreement.
The Merger Agreement subjects Nutrisystem and us to restrictions on our and their respective business
activities prior to the Effective Time.
The Merger Agreement subjects Nutrisystem and us to restrictions on their and our respective business
activities and obligates Nutrisystem and us to generally operate their and our businesses in the ordinary course,
consistent with past practice, until the closing of the Merger. These restrictions could prevent Nutrisystem and us
from pursuing attractive business opportunities that arise prior to the closing of the Merger and are outside the
ordinary course of business.
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Failure to complete the Merger could negatively impact the stock price and the future business and
financial results of Nutrisystem and us.
If the Merger is not completed, the ongoing businesses of Nutrisystem and us may be adversely affected and,
without realizing any of the benefits of having completed the Merger, we and Nutrisystem would be subject to a
number of risks, including the following:
x

we and Nutrisystem may experience negative reactions from the financial markets, including negative
impacts on our and their respective stock prices, and from our and their respective customers, suppliers,
regulators and employees;

x

we and Nutrisystem will be required to pay certain costs relating to the Merger, whether or not the Merger
is completed; and

x

matters relating to the Merger (including integration planning) will require substantial commitments of time
and resources by our and Nutrisystem’s management, which would otherwise have been devoted to dayto-day operations and other opportunities that may have been beneficial to either us or Nutrisystem as an
independent company.

We cannot provide assurance that the risks described above will not materialize. If any of those risks
materialize, they may adversely affect our and Nutrisystem’s businesses, financial condition, financial results and
stock prices.
In addition, we and Nutrisystem could be subject to litigation related to any failure to complete the Merger or
related to any enforcement proceeding commenced against us or Nutrisystem to perform our or their respective
obligations under the Merger Agreement. If the Merger is not completed, these risks may materialize and may
adversely affect our and Nutrisystem’s business, financial condition, financial results and stock prices.
The closing of the Merger may trigger change in control or other provisions in certain agreements to which
Nutrisystem is a party.
The closing of the Merger may trigger change in control or other provisions in certain agreements to which
Nutrisystem is a party. If we and Nutrisystem are unable to negotiate waivers of those provisions, the
counterparties may exercise their rights and remedies under the agreements, potentially terminating the
agreements or seeking monetary damages. Even if we and Nutrisystem are able to negotiate waivers, the
counterparties may seek to renegotiate the agreements on terms less favorable to Nutrisystem or the combined
business.
Our indebtedness following completion of the Merger will be substantially greater than our indebtedness
on a stand-alone basis and greater than our and Nutrisystem’s combined indebtedness existing prior to the
transaction. This increased level of indebtedness could adversely affect us, including by decreasing our
business flexibility, and will increase our borrowing costs.
Upon completion of the Merger, we expect to have incurred acquisition-related debt financing of approximately
$1.18 billion. Our substantially increased indebtedness and higher debt-to-equity ratio following completion of the
Merger in comparison to our indebtedness on a recent historical basis will have the effect, among other things, of
reducing our flexibility to respond to changing business and economic conditions and will increase our borrowing
costs. In addition, the amount of cash required to service our increased indebtedness levels and thus the demands
on our cash resources may be greater than the percentages off cash flows required to service our or Nutrisystem’s
indebtedness individually prior to the transaction. The increased levels of indebtedness could also reduce funds
available for our investments in our programs as well as acquisitions, capital expenditures, share repurchases and
other activities and may create competitive disadvantages for us relative to other companies with lower debt levels.
We may not be able to service all of the combined company’s indebtedness and may be forced to take
other actions to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness, which actions may not be successful. Our
failure to meet our debt service obligations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
We depend on cash on hand and cash flows from operations to make scheduled debt payments. We expect to
be able to meet the estimated cash interest payments on the combined company’s debt following the Merger
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through the expected cash flows from operations of the combined company. However, our ability to generate
sufficient cash flow from operations of the combined company and to make scheduled payments will depend on a
range of economic, competitive and business factors, many of which are outside of our control. We cannot provide
assurance that these sources will be adequate. If we are unable to service our indebtedness and fund our
operations, we will be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, seek additional capital, sell assets or
refinance our indebtedness. Any such action may not be successful and we may be unable to service our
indebtedness and fund our operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.
The agreements that are expected to govern the indebtedness incurred in connection with the Merger,
including the credit agreements in connection with our expected term loan facilities and revolving credit
facility, will contain various covenants that impose restrictions on us and certain of our subsidiaries that
may affect our ability to operate our businesses.
The agreements that are expected to govern the indebtedness incurred in connection with the Merger,
including the credit agreement in connection with our expected term loan facilities and revolving credit facility, are
expected to contain various affirmative and negative covenants that, subject to certain exceptions, will impose
restrictions and limitations on us and certain of our subsidiaries with respect to, among other things, indebtedness;
liens; negative pledges; restricted payments (e.g., dividends, distributions, buybacks, redemptions, repurchases
with respect to equity interests, and payments, redemptions, retirements, purchases, acquisitions, defeasance,
exchange, conversion, cancellation or termination with respect to junior lien, subordinated or unsecured debt);
restrictions on subsidiary distributions; loans, advances and guarantees, acquisitions and other investments;
mergers and other fundamental changes; sales and other dispositions of assets (including equity interests in
subsidiaries); sale/leaseback transactions; transactions with affiliates; conduct of business; amendments and
waivers of organizational documents and material junior debt agreements; our permitted activities; and changes to
fiscal year.
In addition, the credit agreement governing our expected term loan facilities and revolving credit facility is
expected to require us to comply with a total net leverage ratio financial covenant. Our ability and the ability of our
subsidiaries to comply with this provision may be affected by events beyond our control. Failure to comply with the
total net leverage ratio covenant or other provisions of the credit agreement could result in an event of default,
which, if not cured or waived, could accelerate our repayment obligations and could result in a default and
acceleration under other agreements containing cross-default provisions. Under these circumstances, we might not
have sufficient funds or other resources to satisfy all of our obligations.
We will incur significant transaction and Merger-related costs in connection with the Merger.
We expect to incur a number of non-recurring costs associated with the Merger and combining the operations
of the two companies. The substantial majority of non-recurring expenses resulting from the Merger will be
comprised of transaction costs related to the Merger. We also will incur transaction fees and costs related to
formulating and implementing integration plans, including facilities and systems consolidation costs and
employment-related costs. We continue to assess the magnitude of these costs, and additional unanticipated costs
may be incurred in the Merger and the integration of the two companies’ businesses. Although we expect that the
elimination of duplicative costs, as well as the realization of other efficiencies related to the integration of the
businesses, should allow us to offset incremental integration-related costs over time, this net benefit may not be
achieved in the near term, or at all.
The market price of shares of our common stock may decline in the future as a result of the sale of shares
of our common stock held by former Nutrisystem stockholders or our current stockholders.
Following their receipt of shares of our common stock in the Merger, former Nutrisystem stockholders may seek
to sell the shares of our common stock delivered to them. Other of our stockholders may also seek to sell shares of
our common stock held by them following, or in anticipation of, the closing of the Merger. These sales (or the
perception that these sales may occur), coupled with the increase in the outstanding number of shares of our
common stock, may affect the market for, and the market price of, our common stock in an adverse manner.
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The combined company will record goodwill and other intangible assets that could become impaired and
result in material non-cash charges to the results of operations of the combined company in the future.
The Merger will be accounted for as an acquisition in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Nutrisystem and its
subsidiaries will be recorded, as of completion, at their respective fair values and added to ours. The assets to be
recorded at fair value are expected to include goodwill and other intangible assets. Our reported financial condition
and results of operations for periods after the closing of the Merger will reflect Nutrisystem balances and results
after the closing of the Merger, but will not be restated retroactively to reflect the historical financial position or
results of operations of Nutrisystem and its subsidiaries for periods prior to the Merger. We review goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortization for impairment on an annual basis (during the fourth quarter) or more
frequently whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
We lease approximately 264,000 square feet of office space for our corporate headquarters in Franklin,
Tennessee pursuant to an agreement that expires in February 2023. Approximately 221,000 square feet of such
space is subleased to other tenants. We also lease approximately 92,000 square feet of office space in Chandler,
Arizona pursuant to an agreement that expires in April 2020, and approximately 6,000 square feet of office space in
Ashburn, Virginia.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Weiner, Denham, and Allen Lawsuits
On November 6, 2017, United Healthcare issued a press release announcing expansion of its fitness benefits
(“United Press Release”), and the market price of the Company's shares of common stock dropped on that same
day. In connection with the United Press Release, three lawsuits have been filed against the Company as
described below. We are currently not able to predict the probable outcome of these matters or to reasonably
estimate a range of potential losses, if any. We intend to vigorously defend ourselves against all three complaints.
On November 20, 2017, Eric Weiner, claiming to be a stockholder of the Company, filed a complaint on behalf
of stockholders who purchased the Company’s common stock between February 24, 2017 and November 3, 2017
(“Weiner Lawsuit”). The Weiner Lawsuit was filed as a class action in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District
of Tennessee, naming as defendants the Company, the Company's chief executive officer, chief financial officer
and a former executive who served as both chief accounting officer and interim chief financial officer. The
complaint alleges that the defendants violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
promulgated under the Exchange Act in making false and misleading statements and omissions related to the
United Press Release. The complaint seeks monetary damages on behalf of the purported class. On April 3,
2018, the Court entered an order appointing the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System as lead
plaintiff, designated counsel for the lead plaintiff, and established certain deadlines for the case. On June 4, 2018,
Plaintiff filed a first amended complaint. On August 3, 2018, the Company filed a motion to dismiss the first
amended complaint and a memorandum in support of a motion to dismiss seeking dismissal on grounds that the
first amended complaint fails to plead any actionable statement or omission (the “Motion to Dismiss”).
On January 26, 2018, Charles Denham, claiming to be a stockholder of the Company, filed a purported
shareholder derivative action, on behalf of the Company, in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of
Tennessee, naming the Company as a nominal defendant and the Company's chief executive officer, chief financial
officer, a former executive who served as both chief accounting officer and interim chief financial officer, current
directors and a former director of the Company, as defendants (“Denham Lawsuit”). The complaint asserts claims
for breach of fiduciary duty, waste, and unjust enrichment, largely tracking allegations in the Weiner Lawsuit. The
complaint further alleges that certain defendants engaged in insider trading. The plaintiff seeks monetary damages
on behalf of the Company, certain corporate governance and internal procedural reforms, and other equitable relieff.
On August 24, 2018, Andrew H. Allen, claiming to be a stockholder of the Company, filed a purported
shareholder derivative action, on behalf of the Company, in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of
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Tennessee, naming the Company as a nominal defendant and the Company’s chief executive officer, chief financial
officer, a former executive who served as both chief accounting officer and interim chief financial officer, together
with nine current or former directors, as defendants (the “Allen Lawsuit”). The complaint asserts claims for breach
of fiduciary duty and violations of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and the Exchange
Act against all individual defendants, largely tracking allegations in the Weiner Lawsuit and Denham Lawsuit, and
breach of fiduciary duty for insider trading against a former executive who served as both chief accounting officer
and interim chief financial officer and one of the directors of the Company. The plaintiff seeks to recover damages
on behalf of the Company, certain corporate governance and internal procedural reforms, and other equitable relief,
including restitution from the two defendants alleged to have engaged in insider trading from all unlawfully obtained
profits. On October 15, 2018, the Allen Lawsuit and the Denham Lawsuit were consolidated by stipulation, and the
consolidated case was stayed pending entry of an order resolving the Motion to Dismiss filed in the Weiner Lawsuit.
Otherr
Additionally, from time to time, we are subject to contractual disputes, claims and legal proceedings that arise
from time to time in the ordinary course of our business. Some of the legal proceedings pending against us as of
the date of this report are expected to be covered by insurance policies. As these matters are subject to inherent
uncertainties, our view of these matters may change in the future.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following table sets forth certain information regarding our executive officers as of February 26, 2019.
Executive officers of the Company serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Officer

Age
g

Position

Donato Tramuto

62

Chief Executive Officer of the Company since November 2015. Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board of Physicians Interactive Holdings from July
2013 to October 2015. Chief Executive Officer, Founder and Vice Chairman of
Physicians Interactive Holdings from October 2008 to July 2013. Chief Executive
Officer of i3 from 2004 to 2006. Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder of
Constella Health Strategies from 1998 to 2003.

Adam Holland

40

Chief Financial Officer of the Company since June 2017. Chief Financial Officer
of Kirkland’s, Inc. (“Kirkland’s”) from February 2015 to June 2017, Chief
Accounting Officer of Kirkland’s from August 2014 to February 2015 and Vice
President of Finance of Kirkland’s from August 2008 to February 2015.

Mary Flipse

52

Chief Legal Officer of the Company since November 2015. General Counsel of
the Company from July 2012 to March 2016. Director, Corporate Counsel of the
Company from February 2012 to July 2012. Operations Counsel of the
Company from August 2011 until February 2012.

Steve Janicak

59

President, Fitness Division of the Company since January 2019. Chief Growth
Officer of the Company from September 2016 to January 2019. Chief Sales and
Marketing Officer at CareCentrix, Inc. from July 2014 to March 2016. Executive
Vice President Sales, Marketing and Account Management at Implantable
Provider Group, Inc. from July 2013 to May 2014.

Ryan Wagers

41

Chief Accounting Officer of the Company since October 2018. SVP, Chief
Accounting Officer and Treasurer of Sitel Worldwide Corporation (“Sitel”) from
November 2016 to October 2018. SVP, Shared Services of Sitel, from February
2016 until November 2016 and Chief Accounting Officer of Sitel from 2011 to
February 2016.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities
Market Information
Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Global Select Market (“Nasdaq”) under the symbol "TVTY".
Performance Graph
The following graph compares the total stockholder return of $100 invested on December 31, 2013 in (a) the
Company, (b) the Nasdaq U.S. Stocks Benchmark index and (c) the Nasdaq Health Care Providers index, assuming
the reinvestment of all dividends.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Tivity Health, Inc., the Nasdaq Composite Index
and the Nasdaq Health Care Index

$300

$250

$200

$150

$100

$50

$0
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12/14

Tivity Health, Inc.

12/15
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NASDAQ Composite
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NASDAQ Health Care

*$100 invested on 12/31/13 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
Nasdaq Composite & Nasdaq Health Care indices will be used going forward and have been chosen to
replace outdated indices. The outdated indices that no longer have publicly accessible components and
are therefore not considered published indices were Nasdaq U.S. Market and Nasdaq Health Care
Providers Index.

The stock price performance shown on this graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities
As described in Note 9 to the notes to consolidated financial statements included in this report, in 2013 we sold
separate privately negotiated warrants (the “Warrants”) initially relating, in the aggregate, to approximately 7.7
million shares of our common stock. The Warrants are call options with an initial strike price of
approximately $25.95 per share. Since October 1, 2018, the Warrants have been subject to automatic exercise on
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a pro rata basis each trading day continuing for a period of 160 trading days (i.e., approximately 48,000 warrants
are subject to automatic exercise on each trading day). The Warrants are net share settled by our issuing a
number of shares of our common stock per Warrant with a value corresponding to the excess of the market price
per share of our common stock (as measured on each warrant exercise date under the terms of the Warrants) over
the applicable strike price of the Warrants. If such market price per share is less than the applicable strike price of
the Warrants on any given exercise date, then the number of warrants subject to automatic exercise on such
exercise date are not exercised but instead expire.
During 2018, we issued shares of our common stock to the counterparties to the Warrants as set forth below.
Date
October 9, 2018
October 15, 2018
October 17, 2018
October 22, 2018
October 29, 2018
November 5, 2018
November 13, 2018
November 19, 2018
November 26, 2018
December 3, 2018
December 10, 2018
December 17, 2018
December 24, 2018
December 26, 2018

Number of Shares
47,670
23,792
23,790
51,934
52,140
57,780
74,412
71,518
56,972
80,130
69,922
16,234
597
597

The issuance of shares of our common stock as a result off the exercise of the Warrants is exempt from registration
under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, because it was a transaction not involving a public
offering.
Holders of Common Stock
At February 19, 2019, there were approximately 18,900 holders of our common stock, including 190
stockholders of record.
Dividends
We have never declared or paid a cash dividend on our common stock. We intend to retain any earnings to
finance the growth and development of our business and do not expect to declare or pay any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. Our Board of Directors reviews our dividend policy from time to time and may declare dividends
at its discretion; however, our Credit Agreement places restrictions on the payment of dividends. For further
discussion of the Credit Agreement, see Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation - Liquidity and Capital Resources."
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
See Part III, Item 12. "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters," for information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation
plans, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Annual Report
A copy of the Tivity Health, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2018 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission is available on the Company's website, www.tivityhealth.com. It is also available from the Company
(without exhibits) at no charge. These requests should be directed to Tommy Lewis, Senior Vice President –
Investor Relations and Transformation, or Jill Meyer, Vice President – Corporate Communications, at the
Company's corporate office.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following table represents selected consolidated financial data. The table should be read in conjunction
with Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and Item
8. "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" of this report. As further discussed in Note 1 to the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included in this report, our results from continuing operations do not include the
results of the TPHS business, which we sold effective July 31, 2016.
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2017
2016
2015

2018
Operating Results:
Revenues
Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization included below)
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Restructuring and related charges
Legal settlement charges
Operating income

$

606,299

$

556,942

$

432,714
35,113
4,667
124
—
133,681

Interest expense
Income before income taxes

$

8,733
124,948

Income tax expense
Income from continuing operations

$

27,046
97,902

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of
income tax
Net income (loss)

$

Less: net income (loss) attributable to
non-controlling interest
Net income (loss) attributable to Tivity Health

$

Basic income (loss) per share attributable to
Tivity Health:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

$

Diluted income (loss) per share attributable to
Tivity Health:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

$

Weighted average common shares and equivalents:
Basic
Diluted
Selected Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets (2) (3)
Long-term debt (3)
(1)

$

$

$

500,998

$

395,605
34,361
3,357
3,223
—
120,396

$

15,613
104,783

$

43,553
61,230

901
98,803

$

2,485
63,715

(184,706)
$ (128,615) $

(74,952)
(31,318) $

(48,397)
(5,561)

—
98,803

$

—
63,715

496
$ (129,111) $

(371)
(30,947) $

—
(5,561)

1.52 $
(5.01)
(3.49) $

1.22 $
(2.08)
(0.86) $

1.21
(1.37)
(0.16)

1.47 $
(4.86)
(3.39) $

1.18 $
(2.02)
(0.84) $

1.18
(1.33)
(0.15)

(1)

2.44
0.02
2.47

$

2.27
0.02
2.29

$

$

$

$

452,092

$

357,120
39,478
4,085
4,933
—
95,382

$

$

2014

(1)

1.56
0.06
1.62

$

1.44
0.06
1.50

$

$

$

$

405,263

$

318,060
35,546
6,869
702
—
90,915

$

272,400
32,075
7,035
—
5,910
87,843

17,318
78,064

$

17,996
72,919

$

17,449
70,394

21,973
56,091

$

29,285
43,634

$

27,558
42,836

40,078
43,073

39,357
42,547

36,999
38,075

35,832
36,854

35,302
36,346

482,079
30,589

636,163
—

544,782
164,297

712,924
208,289

806,207
225,411

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”), which was signed into law in December 2017, resulted in a

reduction of the U.S. corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21% for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017.

In 2017, we incurred a non-cash charge to income tax expense of $7.4 million related to the Tax Act. This
charge related to both the re-measurement of our deferred tax assets to the lower tax rate and the requirement
to recalculate the impact of repatriation of our foreign earnings, which occurred earlier in the year, under
provisions of the new law. In addition, in 2017 we adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-09,
"Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting" ("ASU 2016-09"), which requires the excess tax benefits from share-based awards to be
recognized on a prospective basis in income tax expense, whereas they were previously recorded to
stockholders’ equity.
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(2)

Includes assets held for sale within discontinued operations at December 31, 2015. In addition, reflects the
impact of ASU No. 2015-17, "Income Taxes: Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes", related to
balance sheet classification of all deferred tax liabilities and assets as noncurrent, which was adopted in 2016
and applied prospectively.

(3)

Reflects the impact of the adoption of ASU No. 2015-03, “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs”
in fiscal 2016 related to balance sheet classification of debt issuance costs, which was applied retrospectively
to all periods presented.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Please read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together
with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included under Item 8. "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data" of this report.
Overview
The Company was founded and incorporated in Delaware in 1981. Through our three programs,
SilverSneakers senior fitness, Prime Fitness and WholeHealth Living, we are focused on advancing long-lasting
health and vitality, especially in aging populations. The SilverSneakers senior fitness program is offered to
members of Medicare Advantage and Medicare Supplement plans. We also offer Prime Fitness, a fitness facility
access program, through commercial health plans, employers, and other sponsoring organizations. Our national
network of fitness centers delivers both SilverSneakers and Prime Fitness. In addition, a small portion of our
fitness center network is available for discounted access through our WholeHealth Living program. Our fitness
networks encompass approximately 16,000 partner locations and more than 1,000 alternative locations that provide
classes outside of traditional fitness centers. Through ourr WholeHealth Living program, which we sell primarily to
health plans, we offer a continuum of services related to complementary, alternative, and physical medicine. Our
WholeHealth Living network includes relationships with approximately 80,000 complementary, alternative, and
physical medicine practitioners to serve individuals through health plans and employers who seek health services
such as chiropractic care, acupuncture, physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech therapy, and more.
Effective July 31, 2016, we sold our TPHS business to Sharecare. Results of operations for the TPHS
business have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements.
The Company is headquartered at 701 Cool Springs Boulevard, Franklin, Tennessee 37067.
Pending Acquisition of Nutrisystem
On December 9, 2018, we entered into the Merger Agreement with Nutrisystem and Merger Sub. The Merger
Agreement provides, among other things, that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein,
Merger Sub will merge with and into Nutrisystem, with Nutrisystem surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tivity
Health.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the Effective Time, each share of common
stock, par value $.001 per share, of Nutrisystem issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time
(other than shares as to which appraisal rights have been properly exercised and certain other excluded shares)
will be converted into the right to receive (i) $38.75 in cash, without interest, and (ii) 0.2141 shares of common
stock of Tivity Health, with cash payable in lieu of fractional shares of common stock of Tivity Health. The Merger is
expected to be completed during the first quarter of 2019 and is subject to the satisfaction of customary closing
conditions including the adoption of the Merger Agreement by Nutrisystem’s stockholders.
In connection with the Merger Agreement, on Decemberr 9, 2018, Tivity Health entered into the Debt
Commitment Letter with CS and CSLF. On December 21, 2018, December 26, 2018, December 27, 2018,
December 31, 2018 and January 4, 2019, the Debt Commitment Letter was amended to add STRH, SunTrust,
CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions Bank, Regions Capital Markets, and GS, as Commitment Parties under the
Debt Commitment Letter and to adjust correspondingly each Commitment Party’s commitment with respect to the
financing contemplated thereby.
Under the Debt Commitment Letter, among other things, CSLF, STRH, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions
Capital Markets and GS have committed to arrange, and CS, SunTrust, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions Bank
and GS have committed to provide, subject to terms and conditions set forth in the Debt Commitment Letter, the
Financing. The Financing will be secured by a first priority security interest and lien on substantially all of the assets
of Tivity Health and its wholly-owned material domestic subsidiaries.
The Commitment Parties’ commitments pursuant to the Debt Commitment Letter are subject to various
conditions, including consummation of the Merger in accordance with the Merger Agreement; the negotiation and
execution of definitive documentation consistent with the Debt Commitment Letter; delivery of certain audited,
unaudited and pro forma financial statements; the absence of a material adverse effect on Nutrisystem after
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December 9, 2018; the accuracy of representations and warranties of Nutrisystem in the Merger Agreement and
specified representations and warranties of Tivity Health to be set forth in the definitive loan documents; the
repayment of all outstanding indebtedness and other obligations of Tivity Health and Nutrisystem under their
existing credit facilities; and other customary closing conditions.
Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains forward-looking statements, which are based upon current expectations, involve a number
of risks and uncertainties, and are subject to the "safe harbor" provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical statements of fact and those
regarding the intent, belief, or expectations of the Company, including, without limitation, all statements regarding
the Company's future earnings, revenues, and results of operations. Readers are cautioned that any such forwardlooking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve significant risks and uncertainties, and
that actual results may vary from those in the forward-looking statements as a result off various factors, including,
but not limited to:
x

our ability to develop and implement effective strategies;

x

the effectiveness of the reorganization of our business and our ability to realize the anticipated benefits;

x

our ability to sign and implement new contracts with new or existing customers;

x

our ability to accurately forecast the costs required to successfully implement new contracts;

x

our ability to renew and/or maintain contracts with our customers and/or our partner locations under existing
terms or restructure these contracts on terms that would not have a material negative impact on our results
of operations;

x

our ability to effectively compete against other entities, whose financial, research, staff, and marketing
resources may exceed our resources;

x

our ability to accurately forecast our revenues, margins, earnings and net income, as well as any potential
charges that we may incur as a result of changes in our business and leadership;

x

our ability to anticipate change and respond to emerging trends for healthcare and the impact of the same
on demand for our services;

x

the risks associated with deriving a significant concentration of our revenues from a limited number of
customers;

x

our ability and/or the ability of our customers to enroll participants and to accurately forecast their level of
enrollment and participation in our programs in a manner and within the timeframe anticipated by us;

x

the impact of severe or adverse weather conditions on member participation in our programs;

x

the ability of our customers to maintain the number off covered lives enrolled in the plans during the terms
of our agreements;

x

the risks associated with changes in macroeconomic conditions;

x

our ability to service our debt, make principal and interest payments as those payments become due, and
remain in compliance with our debt covenants;

x

our ability to integrate new or acquired businesses, services, technologies, solutions, or products into our
business and to accurately forecast the related costs;

x

our ability to anticipate and respond to strategic changes, opportunities, and emerging trends in our
industry and/or business and to accurately forecast the related impact on our revenues and earnings;
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x

the impact of any impairment of our goodwill, intangible assets, or other long-term assets;

x

our ability to develop and commercially introduce new products and services;

x

the market’s acceptance of our new products and services;

x

our ability to obtain adequate financing to provide the capital that may be necessary to support our current
or future operations;

x

the risks associated with data privacy or security breaches, computer hacking, network penetration and
other illegal intrusions of our information systems or those of third-party vendors or other service providers,
which may result in unauthorized access by third parties, loss, misappropriation, disclosure or corruption of
customer, employee or our information; member personal health information; or other data subject to privacy
laws and may lead to a disruption in our business, costs to modify, enhance, or remediate our
cybersecurity measures, enforcement actions, fines or litigation against us, or damage to our business
reputation;

x

the impact of any new or proposed legislation, regulations and interpretations relating to Medicare,
Medicare Advantage, or Medicare Supplement;

x

current geopolitical turmoil and the continuing threat of domestic or international terrorism;

x

the potential emergence of a health pandemic or an infectious disease outbreak;

x

the impact of the Tax Act and any additional new or proposed tax legislation;

x

the impact of legal proceedings involving us and/or our subsidiaries;

x

the timing and likelihood of, and any conditions or requirements imposed in connection with, obtaining
required stockholder approval of the Merger Agreement;

x

the possibility that the closing conditions to the Merger may not be satisfied or waived;

x

delay in closing the Merger or the possibility of non-consummation of the Merger;

x

the risk that expected benefits, synergies and growth opportunities of the Merger may not be achieved in a
timely manner or at all, including that the Merger may not be accretive within the expected timeframe or to
the extent anticipated;

x

the occurrence of any event that could give rise to termination of the Merger Agreement;

x

the risk that stockholder litigation in connection with the Merger may affect the timing or occurrence of the
Merger or result in significant costs off defense, indemnification and liability;

x

the risk that we or Nutrisystem will be unable to retain or hire key personnel;

x

the ability to successfully integrate Nutrisystem’s business with our business following the closing;

x

the risk that the significant indebtedness incurred to fund the merger consideration may limit our ability to
adapt to changes in the economy or market conditions, expose us to interest rate risk for the variable rate
indebtedness and require a substantial portion of cash flows from operations to be dedicated to the
payment of indebtedness;

x

the risk that disruption from the Merger may adversely affect our and Nutrisystem’s business and ours and
their respective relationships with customers, vendors orr employees; and

x

other risks detailed in this report, including those set forth in Item 1A. "Risk Factors."
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We undertake no obligation to update or revise any such forward-looking statements.
Critical Accounting Policies
We describe our significant accounting policies in Note 1 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
We prepare the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and related disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
We believe the following accounting policies are the most critical in understanding the estimates and judgments
that are involved in preparing our financial statements and the uncertainties that could impact our results of
operations, financial condition, and cash flows.
Revenue Recognition
Beginning in 2018, we account for revenue from contracts with customers in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 606. The unit of account in ASC Topic 606 is a performance obligation,
which is a promise in a contract to transfer to a customer either a distinct good or service (or bundle of goods or
services) or a series of distinct goods or services provided over a period of time. ASC Topic 606 requires that a
contract’s transaction price, which is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, is to be allocated to each performance
obligation in the contract based on relative standalone selling prices and recognized as revenue when or as the
performance obligation is satisfied.
We earn revenue from our three programs, SilverSneakers senior fitness, Prime Fitness and WholeHealth
Living. We provide the SilverSneakers senior fitness program to members of Medicare Advantage and Medicare
Supplement plans through our contracts with such plans. We offer Prime Fitness, a fitness facility access program,
through contracts with commercial health plans, employers, and other sponsoring organizations that allow their
members to individually purchase the program. We sell ourr WholeHealth Living program primarily to health plans.
The significant majority of our customer contracts contain one performance obligation - to stand ready to
provide access to our network of fitness locations and fitness programming - which is satisfied over time as
services are rendered each month over the contract term. There are generally no performance obligations that are
unsatisfied at the end of a particular month. There was no material revenue recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2018 from performance obligations satisfied in a prior period.
Our fees are variable month to month and are generally billed per member per month or billed based on a
combination of PMPM and member visits to a network location. We bill PMPM fees by multiplying the contractually
negotiated PMPM rate by the number of members eligible for or receiving our services during the month. We bill
for member visits approximately one month in arrears once actual member visits are known. Payments from
customers are typically due within 30 days of invoice date. When material, we capitalize costs to obtain contracts
with customers and amortize them overr the expected recovery period.
Our customer contracts include variable consideration, which is allocated to each distinct month over the
contract term based on eligible members and/or member visits each month. The allocated consideration
corresponds directly with the value to our customers of our services completed for the month. Under the majority of
our contracts, we recognize revenue each month using the practical expedient available under ASC 606-10-55-18,
which provides that revenue is recognized in the amount for which we have the right to invoice.
Although we evaluate our financial performance and make resource allocation decisions based upon the results
of our single operating and reportable segment, we believe the following information depicts how our revenues and
cash flows are affected by economic factors. For the year ended December 31, 2018, revenue from our
SilverSneakers program, which is predominantly contracted with Medicare Advantage and Medicare Supplement
plans, comprised approximately 80% of our consolidated revenues, while revenue from our Prime Fitness and
WholeHealth Living programs comprised approximately 17% and 3%, respectively, of our consolidated revenues.
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Sales and usage-based taxes are excluded from revenues.
Impairment of Intangible Assets and Goodwill
We review goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level (operating segment or one level below an
operating segment) on an annual basis (during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year) or more frequently whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. We have a single reporting unit.
As part of the impairment evaluation, we may elect to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it
is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value. If we elect not to
perform a qualitative assessment or we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting
unit is less than its carrying value, we perform a quantitative review as described below.
During a quantitative review of goodwill, we estimate the fair value of the reporting unit based on our market
capitalization and compare such fair value to the carrying value of the reporting unit. If the fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, no impairment is indicated. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount, impairment of goodwill is measured as the excess of the carrying amount over fair value.
Except for a tradename that has an indefinite life and is not subject to amortization, we amortize identifiable
intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. We assess the potential
impairment of intangible assets subject to amortization whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying values may not be recoverable. If we determine that the carrying value of other identifiable intangible
assets may not be recoverable, we calculate any impairment using an estimate of the asset's fair value based on the
estimated price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants. We
estimated the fair value of our indefinite-lived intangible asset, a tradename, using a present value technique, which
requires management's estimate of future revenues attributable to this tradename, estimation of the long-term
growth rate and royalty rate for this revenue, and determination of our weighted average cost of capital. Changes in
these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the estimate of fair value for the tradename.
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Executive Overview of Results
The key financial results for the year ended December 31, 2018 are:
x

Revenues from continuing operations of $606.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2018, up 8.9%
from $556.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2017;

x

Pre-tax income from continuing operations of $124.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2018, up
19.2% from $104.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017; and

x

Income from continuing operations of $97.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2018, compared to
$61.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth the components of the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 expressed as a percentage of revenues from continuing operations.

Revenues
Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization
included below)
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Restructuring and related charges
Operating income (1)

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
71.4%
5.8%
0.8%
0.0%
22.0%

71.0%
6.2%
0.6%
0.6%
21.6%

71.3%
7.9%
0.8%
1.0%
19.0%

Interest expense
Income before income taxes (1)
Income tax expense

1.4%
20.6%
4.5%

2.8%
18.8%
7.8%

3.5%
15.6%
4.4%

Income from continuing operations (1)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax
Net income (loss) (1)
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest
Net income (loss) attributable to Tivity Health (1)

16.1%
0.1%
16.3%
—%
16.3%

11.0%
0.4%
11.4%
—%
11.4%

11.2%
(36.9)%
(25.7)%
0.1%
(25.8)%

(1)

Figures may not add due to rounding.

Revenues
Revenues from continuing operations for 2018 increased $49.4 million, or 8.9%, over 2017, primarily as a result
of the following: an increase of $55.2 million due to both a net increase in the number of members eligible and
enrolled to participate in our fitness solutions as well as a net increase in the average participation per member in
such solutions, an increase of $11.2 million due to contracts with new customers, and a decrease of $17.0 million
due to contract terminations and renegotiations.
Revenues from continuing operations for 2017 increased $55.9 million, or 11.2%, over 2016, primarily as a
result of the following: an increase off $67.8 million due to both a net increase in the number of members eligible
and enrolled to participate in our fitness solutions as well as a net increase in the average participation per member
in such solutions, an increase of $8.9 million due to contracts with new customers or expanded contracts with
existing customers, and a decrease of $20.8 million due to contract terminations.
Cost of Services
Cost of services from continuing operations (excluding depreciation and amortization) as a percentage of
revenues increased slightly from 2017 (71.0%) to 2018 (71.4%). Overall, this slight increase is primarily attributable
to a higher number of average visits per member per month in 2018 compared to 2017, and the related costs were
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not fully offset by incremental revenue from such visits due to certain of these member visits relating to customer
contracts in which our revenue per member is fixed, while ourr costs are variable. This increase is somewhat offset
by lower expenses in 2018 related to salaries and benefits, including a lower amount of short-term incentive
compensation based on achievement of targets, as well as lower business separation costs associated with the
separation of the Network Solutions business from the disposed TPHS business.
Cost of services from continuing operations (excluding depreciation and amortization) as a percentage of
revenues did not materially change from 2016 (71.3%) to 2017 (71.0%).
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses from continuing operations as a percentage of revenues did not
materially change from the year ended December 31, 2017 (6.2%) to the year ended December 31, 2018 (5.8%).
Selling, general and administrative expenses from continuing operations as a percentage of revenues for the fourth
quarter of 2018 was 7.2%, an increase compared to the first three quarters of 2018, primarily due to $3.3 million of
project costs incurred in connection with potential and pending acquisitions.
Selling, general and administrative expenses from continuing operations as a percentage of revenues
decreased from 7.9% for the year ended December 31, 2016 to 6.2% forr the year ended December 31, 2017. This
decrease is primarily attributable to cost savings from the reorganization of our corporate support infrastructure that
we began implementing in the third quarter of 2016 and completed in the first quarter of 2017 (the “2016
Restructuring Plan”) as well as decreased consulting costs related to the sale and separation of the TPHS business
in 2016.
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense from continuing operations increased $1.3 million from 2017 to 2018,
primarily due to an increase in the amount of depreciable assets.
Depreciation and amortization expense from continuing operations decreased $0.7 million from 2016 to 2017,
primarily due to a decrease in amortization expense, as all intangible assets subject to amortization became fully
amortized during 2016.
Restructuring and Related Charges
During the fourth quarter of 2017, we began and completed a reorganization primarily related to streamlining
our operations support (the "2017 Restructuring Plan"). We incurred restructuring charges from continuing
operations of $2.6 million related to the 2017 Restructuring Plan, which consisted entirely of severance and other
employee-related costs. The 2017 Restructuring Plan resulted in total annualized savings of approximately $3.0
million to $4.0 million beginning in 2018, which we reinvested into the business in 2018 into initiatives intended to
drive growth in 2018 and beyond.
During 2017 and 2016, we incurred restructuring charges from continuing operations of $0.7 million and $4.9
million, respectively, related to the 2016 Restructuring Plan, which we began implementing in the third quarter of
2016 and completed during the first quarter of 2017. Since its inception, we have incurred a total of approximately
$5.6 million in restructuring charges related to the 2016 Restructuring Plan, which consisted primarily of severance
and other employee-related costs. The 2016 Restructuring Plan began to create cost savings in 2017, and we
expect total savings of approximately $15.0 million to $16.0 million on an annualized basis, approximately half of
which we reinvested into the business in 2017, primarily related to initiatives intended to drive growth beginning in
2018.
Interest Expense
Interest expense from continuing operations decreased $6.9 million from 2017 to 2018, primarily due to a lower
average level of indebtedness during 2018 compared to 2017, including the repayment of the cash convertible
senior notes due 2018 (the “Cash Convertible Notes”) in July 2018.
Interest expense from continuing operations decreased $1.7 million from 2016 to 2017, primarily due to a lower
average level of outstanding borrowings under our credit agreement during 2017 compared to 2016.
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Income Tax Expense
See Note 8 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in this report for a discussion of income tax
expense for fiscal 2018 compared to fiscal 2017. Our effective tax rate for the fourth quarter of 2018 of 10.1%
decreased compared to the first three quarters of 2018 primarily due to positive tax benefits of $4.6 million related
to the vesting of stock-based compensation awards during the fourth quarter.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview
On April 21, 2017, we entered into the Credit Agreement, which replaced the prior Fifth Amended and Restated
Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement (the “Prior Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement provides us
with (1) a $100 million revolving credit facility that includes a $25 million sublimit for swingline loans and a $75
million sublimit for letters of credit, (2) a $70 million term loan A facility, (3) a $150 million delayed draw term loan
facility, and (4) an uncommitted incremental accordion facility of $100 million.
As of December 31, 2018, our availability under the Credit Agreement included $88.8 million under the
revolving credit facility. Proceeds of revolving loans may be used to repay outstanding indebtedness, to finance
working capital needs, to finance acquisitions, to finance the repurchase of our common stock, to finance capital
expenditures and for other general corporate purposes of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The term loan A was repaid in full in 2017. We are required to repay any outstanding revolving loans and the
unpaid balance of the delayed draw term loan in full upon their maturity date of April 21, 2022. At December 31,
2018, the unpaid balance of the delayed draw term loan was $25.0 million.
For a detailed description of the Credit Agreement, refer to Note 9 of the notes to consolidated financial
statements in this report. The Credit Agreement contains financial covenants that require us to maintain specified
ratios or levels at December 31, 2018 of (1) a maximum total funded debt to EBITDA of 3.50 and (2) a minimum total
fixed charge coverage of 1.50. We were in compliance with all of the financial covenant requirements of the Credit
Agreement as of December 31, 2018.
Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities
Operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2018 provided cash of $108.7 million compared to
$105.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2017. The slight increase in operating cash flow is primarily
due to an increase in net income, mostly offset by a deterioration in days’ sales outstanding due to timing of cash
collections and a decrease in cash due to a higher amount of income tax payments.
Operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2017 provided cash of $105.3 million compared to
$45.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2016. The increase in operating cash flow resulted primarily
from an increase in net income, coupled with the use of tax loss carryforwards to offset taxable income and thus
reduce cash taxes, as well as an improvement in days’ sales outstanding, in part related to the composition of our
customer base following the sale of the TPHS business.
Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities
Investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2018 used $7.6 million in cash, compared to $5.9
million during the year ended December 31, 2017, which was primarily due to increased capital expenditures in
2018 compared to 2017, slightly offset by proceeds received during 2018 from a release of escrow funds related to
the sale of MeYou Health, LLC (“MeYou Health”) in June 2016. Capital expenditures in 2018 were primarily related
to computer applications/software and the development off a digital platform related to member awareness and
engagement.
Investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2017 used $5.9 million in cash, compared to $38.9
million during the year ended December 31, 2016, which was primarily due to decreased capital expenditures in
2017 compared to 2016 and payments related to the sale of the TPHS business in 2016 that did not recur in 2017.
These items were slightly offset by proceeds from the sale of the MeYou Health business in 2016. Capital
expenditures in 2016 were primarily associated with our technology platform, while capital expenditures in 2017
were primarily related to computer hardware and applications/software and the development of a digital platform
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related to member awareness and engagement. We expect capital expenditures to remain at lower levels when
compared to the period prior to the sale of the TPHS business due to the profile of the remaining business.
Cash Flows Provided By/Used in Financing Activities
Financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2018 used $127.6 million in cash, compared to $74.3
million during the year ended December 31, 2017. This change is primarily due to higher net repayments of
debt during 2018.
Financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2017 used $74.3 million in cash, while financing
activities during the year ended December 31, 2016 used $6.7 million in cash. This change is primarily due to
higher net payments on debt related to accelerated repayment of our term loan A facility during 2017 totaling $70
million.
Cash Convertible Senior Notes
We repaid the Cash Convertible Notes upon their maturity on July 2, 2018 through a combination of available
cash, payments made by the counterparties under privately negotiated convertible note hedge transactions (the
“Cash Convertible Notes Hedges”), and available credit under the Credit Agreement, as ffurther described in Note 9
of the notes to consolidated financial statements in this report.
For a detailed description of the Warrants underlying the Cash Convertible Notes Hedges, refer to Note 9 of the
notes to consolidated financial statements included in this report.
Financing of the Pending Acquisition of Nutrisystem
In connection with the Merger Agreement, on Decemberr 9, 2018, Tivity Health entered into the Debt
Commitment Letter with CS and CSLF. On December 21, 2018, December 26, 2018, December 27, 2018,
December 31, 2018 and January 4, 2019, the Debt Commitment Letter was amended to add STRH, SunTrust,
CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions Bank, Regions Capital Markets, and GS, as Commitment Parties under the
Debt Commitment Letter and to adjust correspondingly each Commitment Party’s commitment with respect to the
financing contemplated thereby.
Under the Debt Commitment Letter, among other things, CSLF, STRH, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions
Capital Markets and GS have committed to arrange, and CS, SunTrust, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions Bank
and GS have committed to provide, subject to terms and conditions set forth in the Debt Commitment Letter, the
Financing. The Financing will be secured by a first priority security interest and lien on substantially all of the assets
of Tivity Health and its wholly-owned material domestic subsidiaries.
The Commitment Parties’ commitments pursuant to the Debt Commitment Letter are subject to various
conditions, including consummation of the Merger in accordance with the Merger Agreement; the negotiation and
execution of definitive documentation consistent with the Debt Commitment Letter; delivery of certain audited,
unaudited and pro forma financial statements; the absence of a material adverse effect on Nutrisystem after
December 9, 2018; the accuracy of representations and warranties of Nutrisystem in the Merger Agreement and
specified representations and warranties of Tivity Health to be set forth in the definitive loan documents; the
repayment of all outstanding indebtedness and other obligations of Tivity Health and Nutrisystem under their
existing credit facilities; and other customary closing conditions.
General
We believe that cash flows from operating activities, our available cash, and our anticipated available credit
under the Credit Agreement and the Financing will enable us to meet our contractual obligations and fund our
current operations and debt payments for at least the next 12 months. We cannot assure you that we will be able
to secure additional financing if needed and, if such funds are available, whether the terms or conditions will be
favorable to us.
If contract development accelerates or acquisition opportunities arise, we may need to issue additional debt or
equity securities to provide the funding for these increased growth opportunities. We may also issue debt or equity
securities in connection with future acquisitions or strategic alliances. We cannot assure you that we would be able
to issue additional debt or equity securities on terms that would be favorable to us.
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Any material commitments for capital expenditures are included in the "Contractual Obligations" table below.
Contractual Obligations
The following schedule summarizes our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2018:

(in thousands)
Deferred compensation plan payments (1)
Debt and related interest (2)
Operating lease obligations (3)
Capital lease obligations (4)
Severance and related obligations
Other contractual cash obligations (5)
Total Contractual Cash Obligations

Payments due by year ended December 31,
2024 and
2019
2020-2021
2022-2023
After
Total
$
1,330 $
— $
— $
— $
1,330
1,024
946
30,935
—
32,905
4,022
2,951
963
—
7,936
57
104
35
—
196
2,021
—
—
—
2,021
11,000
—
—
—
11,000
$
19,454 $
4,001 $
31,933 $
— $
55,388

(1)

Consists of payments under a non-qualified deferred compensation plan.

(2)

Consists of scheduled principal payments and estimated interest payments on outstanding borrowings under
the Credit Agreement. Total estimated interest payments included in the table above are $1.0 million for 2019,
$0.9 million for 2020 and 2021 combined and $0.5 million for 2022 and 2023 combined.

(3)

Excludes cash receipts from sublease contracts of $5.6 million, $11.4 million, $6.7 million, and $0, respectively.

(4)

Consists of scheduled principal payments on capital lease obligations. Estimated interest payments are zero.

(5)

Other contractual cash obligations include payments related to customer incentives and marketing
commitments.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2018.
Recent Relevant Accounting Standards
See Note 2 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in this report for discussion of recent
relevant accounting standards.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
We are subject to market risk related to interest rate changes, primarily as a result of the Credit
Agreement. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement generally bear interest at variable rates based on a margin or
spread in excess of either (1) the one-month, two-month, three-month or six-month LIBOR rate (or with the
approval of affected lenders, the 12-month LIBOR rate), which may not be less than zero, or (2) the greatest of (a)
the SunTrust Bank prime lending rate, (b) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, and (c) one-month LIBOR plus 1.00%
(the “Base Rate”), as selected by the Company. The LIBOR margin varies between 1.50% and 2.75%, and the
Base Rate margin varies between 0.50% and 1.75%, depending on our net leverage ratio.
We estimate that a one-point interest rate change in our floating rate debt would have resulted in a change in
interest expense of approximately $0.3 million and $0.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tivity Health, Inc.
Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tivity Health, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2018, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial
statements”). We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States off America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria established
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.
Basis for Opinions
The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under
Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects.
Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures
that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance off records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
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only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control overr financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, orr that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Nashville, Tennessee
February 26, 2019
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2014.
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TIVITY HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
December 31,
2018
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Cash convertible notes hedges
Income taxes receivable
Other current assets
Total current assets

$

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of
$30,711 and $28,533, respectively
Long-term deferred tax asset
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill, net
Other assets
Total assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued liabilities
Cash conversion derivative
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Total current liabilities

$

$

Long-term debt
Long-term deferred tax liability
Other long-term liabilities
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock $.001 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, none
outstanding
Common stock $.001 par value, 120,000,000 shares authorized, 41,049,418
and 39,729,580 shares outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
Treasury stock, at cost, 2,254,953 shares in treasury
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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$

1,933
67,139
3,655
—
720
4,658
78,105
16,341
—
29,049
334,680
23,904
482,079

29,103
6,512
43,145
—
57
2,255
81,072

December 31,
2017
$

$

$

28,440
55,113
3,444
134,079
39
2,180
223,295
10,658
25,166
29,049
334,680
13,315
636,163

26,804
15,018
34,511
134,079
145,959
2,262
358,633

30,589
319
1,098

—
—
5,577

—

—

41
347,487
49,655
(28,182 )
369,001
482,079 $

40
349,243
(49,148)
(28,182)
271,953
636,163

TIVITY HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except earnings per share data)

Revenues
Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization of
$4,109, $2,802, and $3,468, respectively, included below)
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Restructuring and related charges
Operating income

$

Interest expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Income from continuing operations

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
606,299 $
556,942 $
500,998
432,714
35,113
4,667
124
133,681

395,605
34,361
3,357
3,223
120,396

357,120
39,478
4,085
4,933
95,382

8,733
124,948

15,613
104,783

17,318
78,064

$

27,046
97,902

$

43,553
61,230

$

21,973
56,091

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax
Net income (loss)

$

901
98,803

$

2,485
63,715

$

(184,706)
(128,615)

Less: net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest
Net income (loss) attributable to Tivity Health, Inc.

$

—
98,803

$

—
63,715

$

496
(129,111)

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Tivity Health, Inc. - basic:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss) (1)

$
$
$

2.44
0.02
2.47

$
$
$

1.56
0.06
1.62

$
$
$

1.52
(5.01)
(3.49)

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Tivity Health, Inc. –
diluted:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

$
$
$

2.27
0.02
2.29

$
$
$

1.44
0.06
1.50

$
$
$

1.47
(4.86)
(3.39)

Comprehensive income (loss)

$

98,803

$

68,217

$

(128,878)

Weighted average common shares and equivalents:
Basic
Diluted
(1)

40,078
43,073

Figures may not add due to rounding.
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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39,357
42,547

36,999
38,075

TIVITY HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands)

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Net change in fair value of interest rate swaps, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax
Release of cumulative translation adjustment to loss from
discontinued operations due to substantial liquidation of
foreign entity
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Comprehensive income (loss)

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
98,803 $
63,715 $
(128,615)
—
—

$
$

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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—
—
98,803

—
1,458

$
$

3,044
4,502
68,217

239
(502)

$
$

—
(263)
(128,878)

TIVITY HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)

Preferred Common
Stock
Stock
$
—$
36
—
—
—
2

Balance, December 31, 2015
Comprehensive loss
Exercise of stock options
Tax effect of stock options and
restricted stock units
Share-based employee
compensation expense
Issuance of CareFirst Warrants
Conversion of CareFirst Convertible
Note
Settlement of non-controlling interest
Balance, December 31, 2016
$
Comprehensive income
Cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle – adoption
of ASU 2016-09
Exercise of stock options
Tax withholding for share-based
compensation
Share-based employee
compensation expense
Balance, December 31, 2017
$
Comprehensive income
Exercise of stock options and
Warrants
Tax withholding for share-based
compensation
Share-based employee
compensation expense
Balance, December 31, 2018
$

Retained
Accumulated
Additional
Earnings
Other
Paid-in (Accumulated Treasury Comprehensive
Capital
Deficit)
Stock
Income (Loss)
Total
$ 303,687 $
9,288 $ (28,182 ) $
(4,239) $ 280,590
—
(128,615)
—
(263) (128,878)
10,000
—
—
—
10,002

—

—

(8,947)

—

—

—

(8,947)

—
—

—
—

17,538
192

—
—

—
—

—
—

17,538
192

—
—
—$
—

1
19,999
—
(1,199)
39 $ 341,270 $
—
—

—
—

—
1

74
5,722

—

—

(4,481)

—
—$
—

—
6,658
40 $ 349,243 $
—
—

—
—
—
—
(119,327) $ (28,182 ) $
63,715
—

—
20,000
—
(1,199)
(4,502) $ 189,298
4,502
68,217

6,464
—

—
—

—
—

6,538
5,723

—

—

—

(4,481)

—
—
(49,148) $ (28,182 ) $
98,803
—

—
6,658
— $ 271,953
—
98,803

—

1

1,909

—

—

—

1,910

—

—

(9,762)

—

—

—

(9,762)

—
—$

—
6,097
41 $ 347,487 $

—
—
49,655 $ (28,182 ) $

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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—
6,097
— $ 369,001

TIVITY HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income from continuing operations
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred loan costs
Amortization of debt discount
Share-based employee compensation expense
(Gain) loss on sale of MeYou Health
(Gain) loss on sale of TPHS business
Loss on release of cumulative translation adjustment
Equity in income from joint ventures
Deferred income taxes
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net
Decrease in other current assets
Decrease increase in accounts payable
Decrease in accrued salaries and benefits
Decrease in other current liabilities
Other
Net cash flows provided by operating activities

$

97,902
901

4,667
1,152
4,140
6,097
(1,416 )
112
—
—
25,485
(12,311 )
1,610
(95 )
(10,314 )
(11,802 )
2,611
108,739

$

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment
Investment in joint ventures
Proceeds from sale of MeYou Health
Payments related to sale of TPHS business
Other
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Year Ended December 31,
2017

$

$

$

(9,053 )
—
1,416
—
—
(7,637 )

$

$

$

253,425
(373,536 )
141,246
(141,246 )
(9,762 )
1,910
—
410
(127,553 )

$

(56 )

$

$

—
(26,507 )

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

$

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for interest

$

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments of long-term debt
Proceeds from settlement of cash convertible notes hedges
Payments related to settlement of cash conversion derivative
Payments related to tax withholding for share-based compensation
Exercise of stock options
Deferred loan costs
Change in cash overdraft and other
Net cash flows used in financing activities

$

$

61,230
2,485

3,357
2,887
8,001
6,658
—
(4,733 )
3,044
—
40,935
(3,939 )
820
(407 )
(6,061 )
(6,436 )
(2,565 )
105,276

$

$

(5,910 )
—
—
—
—
(5,910 )

$

373,450
(449,084 )
—
—
(4,481 )
5,722
(2,452 )
2,533
(74,312 )

$

$

2016
56,091
(184,706 )

31,292
2,209
7,564
17,538
5,325
192,034
—
(271 )
(75,942 )
8,330
2,819
(3,376 )
(1,056 )
(4,825 )
(7,425 )
45,601

(14,474 )
(1,298 )
5,156
(27,469 )
(787 )
(38,872 )

$

515,666
(527,115 )
—
—
(7,699 )
10,002
(424 )
2,834
(6,736 )

1,784

$

(261 )

$

—
26,838

$

(1,637 )
1,369

28,440
1,933

$

1,602
28,440

$

233
1,602

$

4,099

$

4,727

$

7,474

$

3,339

$

—

$

1,458

$

—

$

—

$

192

Assets acquired through capital lease obligation

$

209

$

—

$

—

Conversion of CareFirst Convertible Note

$

—

$

—

$

20,000

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Less: net (decrease) increase in discontinued operations
cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash paid during the period for income taxes, net of refunds
Noncash activities:
Issuance of CareFirst Warrants

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Tivity Health, Inc. was founded and incorporated in Delaware in 1981. Through our three programs,
SilverSneakers® senior fitness, Prime® Fitness and WholeHealth LivingTM, we are focused on advancing longlasting health and vitality, especially in aging populations.
Our results from continuing operations do not include the results of the total population health services
("TPHS") business, which we sold effective July 31, 2016. The TPHS business included our partnerships with Blue
Zones, LLC and Dr. Dean Ornish (the Blue Zones Project by Healthways™ and Dr. Dean Ornish's Program for
Reversing Heart Disease™, respectively), our joint venture with Gallup, Inc., Navvis Healthcare, LLC (“Navvis”),
MeYou Health, LLC (“MeYou Health”), and our international operations, including our joint venture with SulAmérica.
While Navvis and MeYou Health were part of our TPHS business, they were sold separately to other buyers in
November 2015 and June 2016, respectively. Results of operations for the TPHS business have been classified as
discontinued operations for all periods presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. See Note
4 for further information on discontinued operations.
On March 11, 2015, we formed a joint venture with SulAmérica, one of the largest independent insurers in
Brazil, to sell total population health services to the Brazilian market. With its contribution, SulAmérica acquired a
49% interest in the joint venture, Healthways Brasil Servicos de Consultoria LTDA ("Healthways Brazil"). We
determined that our interest in Healthways Brazil represented a controlling financial interest and, therefore, prior to
selling the TPHS business, consolidated the financial statements of Healthways Brazil and presented a noncontrolling interest for the portion owned by SulAmérica. The net assets and results of operations of Healthways
Brazil were part of the sale of the TPHS business and are included within discontinued operations in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Our financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Tivity Health, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively, “Tivity Health,” the “Company,” or
such terms as “we,” “us,” or “our”) reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments,
necessary for a fair statement. We have reclassified certain items in prior periods to conform to current
classifications.
a.

Principles of Consolidation – See discussion above regarding the TPHS business, including a non-controlling
interest. We have eliminated all intercompany profits, transactions, and balances.

b.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents primarily include cash on deposit.

c.

Accounts Receivable, net - Accounts receivable includes billed and unbilled amounts. Billed receivables
represent fees that are contractually due for services performed, net of allowances for doubtful accounts
(reflected as selling, general and administrative expenses). Allowances for doubtful accounts were $0 at
December 31, 2018 and 2017. Historically, we have experienced minimal instances of customer non-payment
and therefore consider our accounts receivable to be collectible; however, we provide reserves, when
appropriate, for doubtful accounts on a specific identification basis. Unbilled receivables primarily represent
fees recognized for monthly member utilization of fitness facilities under our SilverSneakers fitness solution,
billed one month in arrears.

d.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment is carried at cost and includes expenditures that increase
value or extend useful lives. We recognize depreciation using the straight-line method over useful lives of three
to seven years for computer software and hardware and four to seven years for furniture and other office
equipment. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the
life of the lease, which ranges from two to fifteen years. Depreciation expense for the years ended December
31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 was $4.7 million, $3.4 million, and $3.6 million, respectively, including depreciation of
assets recorded under capital leases.

e.

Other Assets - Other assets consist primarily of shares of common stock of Sharecare (see Note 4), which are
accounted for as a cost method investment, and customer incentives. We have elected the measurement
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alternative to measure cost method investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value at cost less
impairment, adjusted by observable price changes, with any fair value changes recognized in earnings.
f.

Intangible Assets - Intangible assets subject to amortization include customer contracts, acquired technology,
and distributor and provider networks, which we amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives
ranging from three to ten years. All intangible assets subject to amortization were fully amortized at December
31, 2018 and 2017.
We assess the potential impairment of intangible assets subject to amortization whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If we determine that the carrying value
of identifiable intangible assets may not be recoverable, we calculate any impairment using an estimate of the
asset's fair value based on the estimated price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants.
Intangible assets not subject to amortization at December 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of a trade name of $29.0
million. We review intangible assets not subject to amortization on an annual basis or more frequently
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. See Note 7 for further
information on intangible assets.

g.

Goodwill - We recognize goodwill for the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of tangible and
identifiable intangible net assets of businesses that we acquire.
We review goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level (operating segment or one level below an
operating segment) on an annual basis (during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year) or more frequently
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. We have a single
reporting unit.
As part of the impairment evaluation, we may elect to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it
is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value. If we elect not to
perform a qualitative assessment or we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the
reporting unit is less than its carrying value, we perform a quantitative review as described below.
During a quantitative review of goodwill, we estimate the fair value of the reporting unit based on our market
capitalization and compare such fair value to the carrying value of the reporting unit. If the fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, no impairment is indicated. If the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount, impairment of goodwill is measured as the excess of the carrying amount over
fair value.
If we determine that the carrying value of goodwill is impaired, we calculate any impairment using a fair-value
based goodwill impairment test as required by U.S. GAAP. The fair value of a reporting unit is the price that
would be received upon a sale of the unit as a whole in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date.

h.

Accounts Payable - Accounts payable consists of short-term trade obligations and includes cash overdrafts
attributable to disbursements not yet cleared by the bank.

i.

Accrued Liabilities – Accrued liabilities primarily include amounts owed for estimated member visits to network
locations (which actual visit data is typically received approximately one month in arrears) and other obligations
that have been incurred. Estimated amounts accrued for member visits at December 31, 2018 and December
31, 2017 were $26.1 million and $23.1 million, respectively. Other obligations included customer incentives of
$9.8 million at December 31, 2018.

j.

Income Taxes - We file a consolidated federal income tax return that includes all of our wholly-owned
subsidiaries. U.S. GAAP generally require that we record deferred income taxes for the tax effect of differences
between the book and tax bases of our assets and liabilities. We recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax
position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50%
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement.
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Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts that are
expected to be realized. When we determine that it is more likely than not that we will be able to realize our
deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset is made and reflected in income.
k.

Revenue Recognition - On January 1, 2018, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09
(as discussed under “Recent Relevant Accounting Standards” below) using the modified retrospective transition
method applied to contracts that were not completed as of January 1, 2018. See Note 3 for a further
discussion of revenue recognition.

l.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share – We calculate basic earnings (loss) per share using weighted average common
shares outstanding during the period. We calculate diluted earnings (loss) per share using weighted average
common shares outstanding during the period plus the effect of all dilutive potential common shares
outstanding during the period unless the impact would be anti-dilutive. See Note 15 for a reconciliation of basic
and diluted earnings (loss) per share.

m. Share-Based Compensation – We recognize all share-based payments to employees in the consolidated

statements of operations over the required vesting period based on estimated fair values at the date of grant.
See Note 14 for further information on share-based compensation.
n.

Management Estimates – In preparing our consolidated financial statements in conformity
f
with U.S. GAAP,
management must make estimates and assumptions that affect: (1) the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements; and (2) the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

2. Recent Relevant Accounting Standards
On January 1, 2018, we adopted Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 606, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” (“ASC Topic 606”) using the modified retrospective method, pursuant to which we
applied ASC Topic 606 to (i) all new contracts entered into after January 1, 2018 and (ii) contracts that were not
completed as of January 1, 2018. In accordance with this approach, our results for periods prior to January 1, 2018
were not revised and continue to be reported in accordance with our historical accounting under ASC Topic 605,
“Revenue Recognition.” For contracts that were modified prior to January 1, 2018, we have not retrospectively
restated the contract for those modifications in accordance with the contract modification guidance in ASC 606-1025-12 and ASC 606-10-25-13 but instead, using the practical expedient available under ASC 606-10-651(f)(4), have reflected the aggregate effect of all modifications when identifying the satisfied and unsatisfied
performance obligations, determining the transaction price, and allocating the transaction price.
The cumulative impact of our adoption of ASC Topic 606 was not material to record as of January 1, 2018, and
there was no material impact on our consolidated income statement, balance sheet, or cash flows. For example,
we do not have any material contract assets or contract liabilities as defined under ASC Topic 606. In addition, the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer (for example, sales commissions) that would have been
recognized as an asset on January 1, 2018 or on December 31, 2018 were not material to record. See Note 3 for a
further discussion of revenue recognition.
On January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU No. 2016-15, “Statement of Cash Flows” (Topic 230) (“ASU 201615”). ASU 2016-15 addresses how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and classified in the
statement of cash flows and is to be applied using a retrospective approach. The adoption of this standard did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures and did not result in a
reclassification to items in prior periods.
On January 1, 2018, we adopted ASU No. 2017-09, “Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope
of Modification Accounting” (“ASU 2017-09”), which clarifies when changes to the terms or conditions of a sharebased payment award must be accounted for as modifications. ASU 2017-09 is to be applied prospectively to
awards modified on or after January 1, 2018. The adoption of this standard did not have an impact on our
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU No. 201602, “Leases” (“ASU 2016-02” or “ASC 842”), which requires that lessees recognize assets and liabilities for leases
with lease terms greater than twelve months in the statement of financial position, and was effective for us on
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January 1, 2019. ASU 2016-02 also requires improved disclosures to help users of financial statements better
understand the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases.
ASC 842 originally required entities to use a modified retrospective transition method in which companies
would initially apply ASC 842 and recognize an adjustment for the effects of the transition as of the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented (January 1, 2017 for the Company). In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU No.
2018-11, “Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements”, which amends ASC 842 to allow entities to change the
date of initial application to the beginning of the period of adoption (January 1, 2019 for the Company), with no
requirement to recast comparative periods.
We adopted ASC 842 as of January 1, 2019 and are electing to recognize the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard as an adjustment to beginning retained earnings as of January 1, 2019. The significant
majority of our leases are classified as operating leases. Although we are still finalizing our analysis, we expect the
new lease standard to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. The most significant effects
relate to our recognition of new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. We do not expect ASC 842 to have a
material impact on net income or the statement of cash flows. In addition, we elected the following practical
expedients available under ASC 842: (1) the package off practical expedients whereby we are not required to
reassess upon adoption of ASC 842 (a) whether a contract is or contains a lease, (b) lease classification, and (c)
initial direct costs (ASC 842-10-65-1(f)); and (2) the short-term lease measurement and recognition exemption
(ASC 842-20-25-2). ASC 842 will also require significant new disclosures about leasing activity.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, “Intangibles - Goodwill and Other” (“ASU 2017-04”),
which simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating step two from the goodwill impairment
test. ASU 2017-04 is effective for annual and interim impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2019 and is required to be applied prospectively. Early adoption is allowed for annual goodwill impairment tests
performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. We do not anticipate that adopting this standard will have an
impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, “Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure
Framework – Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement” (“ASU 2018-13”), which
changes the fair value measurement disclosure requirements of ASC 820. ASU 2018-13 is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2019, including interim periods therein, and is generally required to be applied
retrospectively, except for certain components that are to be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted for
any eliminated or modified disclosures. We do not anticipate that adopting this standard will have a material impact
on our disclosures.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, “Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments” (“ASU 2016-13”), which requires companies to measure
credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date utilizing a methodology that reflects current expected
credit losses over the lifetime of such assets. ASU 2016-13 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2020 and is
generally required to be applied using the modified retrospective approach, with limited exceptions for specific
instruments. We do not anticipate that adopting this standard will have an impact on our consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.
3. Revenue Recognition
Beginning in 2018, we account for revenue from contracts with customers in accordance with ASC Topic
606. The unit of account in ASC Topic 606 is a performance obligation, which is a promise in a contract to transfer
to a customer either a distinct good or service (or bundle of goods or services) or a series of distinct goods or
services provided over a period of time. ASC Topic 606 requires that a contract's transaction price, which is the
amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, is to be allocated to each performance obligation in the contract based on relative standalone
selling prices and recognized as revenue when or as the performance obligation is satisfied.
We earn revenue from our three programs, SilverSneakers senior fitness, Prime Fitness and WholeHealth
Living. We provide the SilverSneakers senior fitness program to members of Medicare Advantage and Medicare
Supplement plans through our contracts with such plans. We offer Prime Fitness, a fitness facility access program,
through contracts with employers, commercial health plans, and other sponsoring organizations that allow their
members to individually purchase the program. We sell ourr WholeHealth Living program primarily to health plans.
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The significant majority of our customer contracts contain one performance obligation - to stand ready to provide
access to our network of fitness locations and fitness programming - which is satisfied over time as services are
rendered each month over the contract term. There are generally no performance obligations that are unsatisfied at
the end of a particular month. There was no material revenue recognized during the year ended December 31, 2018
from performance obligations satisfied in a prior period.
Our fees are variable month to month and are generally billed per member per month (“PMPM”) or billed based
on a combination of PMPM and member visits to a network location. We bill PMPM fees by multiplying the
contractually negotiated PMPM rate by the number of members eligible for or receiving our services during the
month. We bill for member visits approximately one month in arrears once actual member visits are
known. Payments from customers are typically due within 30 days of invoice date. When material, we capitalize
costs to obtain contracts with customers and amortize them over the expected recovery period.
Our customer contracts include variable consideration, which is allocated to each distinct month over the
contract term based on eligible members and/or member visits each month. The allocated consideration
corresponds directly with the value to our customers of our services completed for the month. Under the majority of
our contracts, we recognize revenue each month using the practical expedient available under ASC 606-10-55-18,
which provides that revenue is recognized in the amount for which we have the right to invoice.
Although we evaluate our financial performance and make resource allocation decisions based upon the results
of our single
g operating
g and reportable segment,
g
we believe the following
g information depicts how our revenues and
cash flows are affected by economic factors. For the year ended December 31, 2018, revenue from our
SilverSneakers program, which is predominantly contracted with Medicare Advantage and Medicare Supplement
plans, comprised approximately 80% of our consolidated revenues, while revenue from our Prime Fitness and
WholeHealth Living
g programs
g
comprised approximately
y 17% and 3%, respectively,
y of our consolidated revenues.
Sales and usage-based
g
taxes are excluded from revenues.
4. Discontinued Operations
On July 27, 2016, we entered into a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement")
with Sharecare, Inc. ("Sharecare") and Healthways SC, LLC, a newly formed Delaware limited liability company
and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which Sharecare acquired the TPHS business, which
closed effective July 31, 2016 ("Closing").
At Closing, Sharecare delivered to the Company an Adjustable Convertible Equity Right (the "ACER") with an
initial face value of $30.0 million. The ACER became convertible into shares of common stock of Sharecare on
July 31, 2018 at an initial conversion price of $249.87 per share, subject to customary adjustment for stock splits,
stock dividends and other reorganizations of Sharecare.
The Purchase Agreement provided for post-closing adjustments based on, among otherr things, any successful
claims for indemnification by Sharecare (which may have resulted in a reduction in the face amount of the ACER,
unless the Company elects, in its sole discretion, to satisfy any such successful claims with cash payments), none
of which such claims had been made as of December 31, 2018.
At December 31, 2017, we recorded the $39.8 million face value of the ACER at an estimated carrying value of
$10.8 million, which was classified as an equity receivable included in other long-term assets. Upon conversion of
the ACER in October 2018, we obtained 159,309 shares of Sharecare common stock, which continue to be
recorded in other long-term assets at a carrying value of $10.8 million. There are certain restrictions related to
selling or transferring this stock. These shares may not be sold or otherwise transferred except (i) for cash subject
to the right of first refusal by Sharecare and/or one or more of its shareholders (in each case, at their option), or (ii)
with the consent of Sharecare’s shareholders holding at least a majority of Sharecare stock, or (iii) pursuant to
certain other exemptions.
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The following table presents financial results of the TPHS business included in “income (loss) from
discontinued operations" for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016.

(In thousands)
Revenues
Cost of services
Selling, general & administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Restructuring and related charges
Equity in income from joint ventures
Pretax loss on discontinued operations
Pretax loss on release of cumulative translation
adjustment (1)
Pretax gain (loss) on sale of MeYou Health business (2)
Pretax income (loss) on sale of TPHS business
Total pretax income (loss) on discontinued operations
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of
income tax

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
— $
—
$ 151,780
30
427
173,302
48
349
18,594
—
—
27,207
—
—
8,626
—
98
243
(78)
(678 )
(75,706)
—
1,416
(112)
1,226
325

$

901

(3,044 )
—
4,733
1,011
(1,474 ) (3)
$

2,485

—
(4,826)
(202,095)
(282,627)
(97,921)
$ (184,706)

(1)

During the second quarter of 2017, we substantially liquidated foreign entities that were part of our TPHS
business, resulting in a release off the cumulative translation adjustment of $3.0 million into loss from
discontinued operations.

(2)

Includes $1.4 million received during the three months ended June 30, 2018 from a release of escrow funds
related to the sale of MeYou Health, LLC in June 2016.

(3)

Income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2017 includes the effect of a change in the estimate of net
U.S. tax incurred in 2016 on foreign activity classified as discontinued operations.

The depreciation, amortization and significant operating and investing non-cash items of the discontinued
operations were as follows:

(In thousands)
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditures
Share-based compensation

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
— $
— $
27,207
—
—
10,258
—
—
10,144

5. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment at December 31, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following:
(In thousands)
Leasehold improvements
Computer equipment and related software
Furniture and office equipment
Capital projects in process
Total property and equipment at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total property and equipment, net
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December 31,
2018
$
10,404
22,200
8,053
6,395
$
47,052
(30,711)
$
16,341

December 31,
2017
$
10,384
19,508
8,194
1,105
$
39,191
(28,533)
$
10,658

6. Goodwill
There was no change in the carrying amount of goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2018 or 2017.
At each of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the gross amount of goodwill totaled $517.0 million, and
we had accumulated impairment losses of $182.4 million.
7. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets subject to amortization at December 31, 2018 consisted of the following:
Gross
Carrying
Accumulated
Amount
Amortization
$
1,483 $
(1,483)
8,709
(8,709)
$
10,192 $
(10,192 ) $

(In thousands)
Acquired technology
Distributor and provider networks
Total

Net
—
—
—

Intangible assets subject to amortization at December 31, 2017 consisted of the following:
Gross
Carrying
Accumulated
Amount
Amortization
$
1,733 $
(1,733)
8,709
(8,709)
$
10,442 $
(10,442 ) $

(In thousands)
Acquired technology
Distributor and provider networks
Total

Net
—
—
—

As all intangible assets subject to amortization were fully amortized as of December 31, 2018, no amortization
expense is expected over the next five years and thereafter. Total amortization expense for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 was $0, $0, and $0.5 million, respectively.
Intangible assets not subject to amortization at December 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of a tradename of $29.0
million.
8. Income Taxes
Income tax expense (benefit) is comprised of the following:

(In thousands)
Current taxes:
Federal
State
Deferred taxes:
Federal
State
Total

2018
$

Year Ended December 31,
2017

29
1,857
20,136
5,024
27,046

$
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$

$

771
373
37,565
4,844
43,553

$

$

2016
(426)
311
18,910
3,178
21,973

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The following table sets
forth the significant components of our net deferred tax asset and liability as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:
December 31,
2018

(In thousands)
Deferred tax asset:
Accruals and reserves
Deferred compensation
Share-based payments
Net operating loss carryforwards
Capital loss carryforwards
Cash Conversion Derivative
Tax credits
Other assets

$

Valuation allowance
$
Deferred tax liability:
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Cash Convertible Notes Hedges

$

Net long-term deferred tax asset (liability)

$

December 31,
2017

769 $
496
2,111
9,430
7,620
—
6,437
—
26,863
(10,457)
16,406 $

1,539
1,439
2,944
32,122
8,102
25,821
6,994
320
79,281
(11,462)
67,819

(2,600 ) $
(14,125)
—
(16,725)
(319 ) $

(2,104)
(14,728)
(25,821)
(42,653)
25,166

In December 2017, we recorded $5.0 million of tax expense necessary to revalue our deferred tax assets and
liabilities at the new 21% federal rate as enacted in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (the "Tax Act"). A
At
December 31, 2018, we provided valuation allowances for $2.4 million of deferred tax assets associated with our
international net operating loss carryforwards, $0.5 million of deferred tax assets associated with our state net
operating loss carryforwards, and $7.6 million for deferred tax assets related to capital loss carryforwards incurred
in the sale of the TPHS business. We recorded a total decrease in our valuation allowance of $1.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018. Our valuation allowance at December 31, 2018 is $10.5 million.
At December 31, 2018, we had international net operating loss carryforwards totaling approximately $8.0
million with an indefinite carryforward period, approximately $5.2 million of federal net operating loss carryforwards,
approximately $105.1 million of state net operating loss carryforwards expiring between 2021 and 2037,
approximately $30.5 million of capital loss carryforwards expiring in 2021, and approximately $4.6 million of foreign
tax credits expiring between 2022 and 2027. Of the federal net operating loss carryforwards, $1.4 million is subject
to annual limitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 and expires in 2022, if not utilized. The remainder of
the federal net operating loss carryforwards expires in 2037.
Upon adoption of ASU 2016-09 on January 1, 2017, we recorded a $6.5 million increase in deferred tax assets
as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings. The increase in deferred tax assets related to the previously
suspended portion of net operating losses attributable to excess tax deductions from share-based payment awards.
In 2017, our undistributed foreign earnings were subject to the mandatory deemed repatriation (“toll charge”)
provision included in the Tax Act, and we repatriated these earnings during 2017. Due to the mandatory deemed
repatriation, we recorded $2.5 million of tax expense in continuing operations as of the date of enactment. We have
no undistributed earnings at December 31, 2018 as our foreign operations are no longer active.
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The difference between income tax expense computed using the statutory federal income tax rate and the
effective rate is as follows:

(In thousands)
Statutory federal income tax
State income taxes, less federal income tax benefit
Permanent items
Change in valuation allowance
Share-based compensation
Tax Act adjustments
Change in uncertain tax position liability
Prior year tax adjustments
Net impact of foreign operations
State income tax credits
Income tax expense

$

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
26,239 $
36,674 $
27,321
6,261
5,119
3,801
1,496
1,750
954
(1,005)
—
(9,615)
(6,378)
(6,441)
—
—
7,442
—
(644)
—
—
(590)
(544 )
(444)
990
—
—
677
(447 )
(44)
27,046 $
43,553 $
21,973

Uncertain Tax Positions
During 2018, we recorded a $0.6 million reduction to an unrecognized tax benefit due to the settlement of a tax
audit related to state refund claims for tax years 2012 through 2015. As of December 31, 2018, we had no
unrecognized tax benefits that would affect our effective tax rate. Our policy is to include interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. During 2018, 2017, and 2016, there were no interest
and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits recorded as income tax expense.
The aggregate changes in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits, exclusive of interest, were as follows:
(In thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2016
Increases based upon tax positions related to prior years
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2017
Decreases based upon settlements with taxing authorities
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2018

$
$
$

—
644
644
(644)
—

We file income tax returns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction and in various state and foreign jurisdictions. Tax
years remaining subject to examination in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction include 2015 to present.
9. Debt
The Company's debt, net of unamortized deferred loan costs, consisted of the following at December 31, 2018
and 2017:
December 31,
December 31,
2018
2017
$
— $
145,861
25,000
—
5,450
—
196
549
30,646
146,410
—
(451)
30,646
145,959
(57 )
(145,959)
$
30,589 $
—

(In thousands)
Cash Convertible Notes, net of unamortized discount
Delayed draw term loan
Revolving credit facility
Capital lease obligations and other
Less: deferred loan costs
Total debt
Less: current portion
Long-term debt
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Credit Facility
On April 21, 2017, we entered into a new Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with a group of lenders. The Credit Agreement replaced the prior Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit
and Term Loan Agreement (the “Prior Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement provides us with (1) a $100
million revolving credit facility that includes a $25 million sublimit for swingline loans and a $75 million sublimit for
letters of credit, (2) a $70 million term loan A facility, (3) a $150 million delayed draw term loan facility, and (4) an
uncommitted incremental accordion facility of $100 million.
We used the proceeds of the term loan A and cash on hand to repay all of the outstanding indebtedness under
the Prior Credit Agreement and to pay transaction costs and expenses. Proceeds of revolving loans and delayed
draw term loans may be used to repay outstanding indebtedness (including amounts payable upon or in respect of
any conversion of the Cash Convertible Notes discussed below and the repayment of any revolving loans borrowed
for such purposes), to finance working capital needs, to finance acquisitions, to finance the repurchase of our
common stock, to finance capital expenditures and for other general corporate purposes of the Company and its
subsidiaries. As further detailed below under “1.50% Cash Convertible Senior Notes Due 2018”, on July 2, 2018,
we borrowed $100.0 million under the delayed draw term loan, which was used to repay the principal amount of the
Cash Convertible Notes. No additional amounts may be borrowed under the delayed draw term after July 2, 2018.
We are required to repay any outstanding revolving loans in full on April 21, 2022. The term loan A was repaid
in full during 2017 and may not be re-borrowed. We are required to repay the delayed draw term loan in quarterly
principal installments calculated as follows: (1) for each of the first six quarters following the time of
borrowing (beginning with the fourth quarter of 2018 and ending with the first quarter of 2020), 1.250% of the
aggregate principal amount of the delayed draw term loan funded as of the last day of the immediately preceding
quarter; and (2) for each of the remaining quarters prior to maturity on April 21, 2022, 1.875% of the aggregate
principal amount of the delayed draw term loan funded as off the last day of the immediately preceding quarter. At
maturity on April 21, 2022, the entire unpaid principal balance of the delayed draw term loan is due and payable.
During the third and fourth quarters of 2018, we paid down a total of $75.0 million on the delayed draw term loan,
which satisfied all of the mandatory principal payments described in items 1 and 2 above and further reduced the
principal balance due at maturity. No further principal payments are required until maturity. As of December 31,
2018, availability under the revolving credit facility totaled $88.8 million.
Borrowings under the Credit Agreement generally bear interest at variable rates based on a margin or spread in
excess of either (1) the one-month, two-month, three-month or six-month LIBOR rate (or with the approval of
affected lenders, the 12-month LIBOR rate), which may not be less than zero, or (2) the greatest of (a) the
SunTrust Bank prime lending rate, (b) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, and (c) one-month LIBOR plus 1.00% (the
“Base Rate”), as selected by the Company. The LIBOR margin varies between 1.50% and 2.75%, and the Base
Rate margin varies between 0.50% and 1.75%, depending on our net leverage ratio. The Credit Agreement also
provides for annual fees ranging between 0.20% and 0.50% of the unused commitments under the revolving credit
facility and the delayed draw term loan facility and annual letter of credit fees on the daily outstanding availability
under outstanding letters of credit at the applicable LIBOR margin. Extensions of credit under the Credit
Agreement are secured by guarantees from all of the Company’s active material domestic subsidiaries and by
security interests in substantially all of the Company’s and such subsidiaries’ assets.
The Credit Agreement contains financial covenants that require us to maintain, as defined, (1) specified
maximum ratios or levels of funded debt to EBITDA and (2) a specified minimum ratio or level of fixed charge
coverage. The Credit Agreement also contains various other affirmative and negative covenants that are typical for
financings of this type. Among other things, they limit repurchases of our common stock and the amount of
dividends that we can pay to holders of our common stock.
1.50% Cash Convertible Senior Notes Due 2018
On July 16, 2013, we completed the issuance of $150.0 million aggregate principal amount of cash convertible
senior notes due 2018 (the "Cash Convertible Notes"), which bore interest at a rate of 1.50% per year, payable
semiannually in arrears on January 1 and July 1 of each year, beginning on January 1, 2014. The Cash Convertible
Notes matured on July 2, 2018. All of the holders elected to convert their Cash Convertible Notes for settlement on
July 2, 2018, and none of the Cash Convertible Notes were repurchased or converted into cash prior to such date.
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The cash conversion feature of the Cash Convertible Notes was a derivative liability (the "Cash Conversion
Derivative") that required bifurcation from the Cash Convertible Notes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 815,
"Derivatives and Hedging" ("ASC Topic 815"), and was carried at fair value. The fair value of the Cash Conversion
Derivative at the time of issuance off the Cash Convertible Notes was recorded as a debt discount for purposes of
accounting for the debt component of the Cash Convertible Notes.
The debt discount was amortized over the term of the Cash Convertible Notes using the effective interest
method. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, we recorded $4.1 million and $8.0 million,
respectively, of interest expense related to the amortization of the debt discount based upon an effective interest
rate of 5.7%. We also recognized interest expense of $1.1 million, $2.3 million, and $2.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, related to the contractual interest rate of 1.50% per year.
In connection with the issuance of the Cash Convertible Notes, we entered into privately negotiated convertible
note hedge transactions (the "Cash Convertible Notes Hedges"), which were cash-settled and were intended to
reduce our exposure to potential cash payments that we would be required to make if holders elected to convert the
Cash Convertible Notes at a time when our stock price exceeded the conversion price. The Cash Convertible Notes
Hedges were recorded as a derivative asset under ASC Topic 815 and were carried at fair value. See Note 11 for
additional information regarding the Cash Convertible Notes Hedges and the Cash Conversion Derivative and their
fair values.
On July 2, 2018, we repaid the $150.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Cash Convertible Notes using
a combination of available cash and proceeds from borrowings under the delayed draw term loan facility of $100.0
million. In addition, on July 2, 2018 we settled the Cash Conversion Derivative of $141.2 million, which was fully
funded by payments made by the counterparties for the settlement of the Cash Convertible Notes Hedges.
In July 2013, we also sold separate privately negotiated warrants (the "Warrants") initially relating, in the
aggregate, to approximately 7.7 million shares of our common stock underlying the Cash Convertible Notes
Hedges. The Warrants are call options with an initial strike price of approximately $25.95 per share. Since October
1, 2018, the Warrants have been subject to automatic exercise on a pro rata basis each trading day continuing for a
period of 160 trading days (i.e., approximately 48,000 warrants are subject to automatic exercise on each trading
day). The Warrants are net share settled by our issuing a number of shares of our common stock per Warrant with
a value corresponding to the excess of the market price per share of our common stock (as measured on each
warrant exercise date under the terms of the Warrants) overr the applicable strike price of the Warrants. If such
market price per share is less than the applicable strike price of the Warrants on any given exercise date, then the
number of warrants subject to automatic exercise on such exercise date are not exercised but instead expire. The
Warrants meet the definition of derivatives under the guidance in ASC Topic 815; however, because these
instruments have been determined to be indexed to our own stock and meet the criteria for equity classification
under ASC Topic 815, the Warrants have been accounted for as an adjustment to our additional paid-in-capital.
During the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2018, we issued approximately 627,000 shares of common
stock related to the automatic exercise of the Warrants.
When the market value per share of our common stock exceeds the strike price of the Warrants, the Warrants
have a dilutive effect on net income per share, and the "treasury stock" method is used in calculating the dilutive
effect on earnings per share. See Note 15 for additional information on such dilutive effect.
The following table summarizes the minimum annual principal payments and repayments of the revolving
advances under the Credit Agreement for each of the next five years and thereafter:
(In thousands)
Year ending December 31,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024 and thereafter
Total

$

$
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—
—
—
30,450
—
—
30,450

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Weiner, Denham, and Allen Lawsuits
On November 6, 2017, United Healthcare issued a press release announcing expansion of its fitness benefits
(“United Press Release”), and the market price of the Company's shares of common stock dropped on that same
day. In connection with the United Press Release, three lawsuits have been filed against the Company as
described below. We are currently not able to predict the probable outcome of these matters or to reasonably
estimate a range of potential losses, if any. We intend to vigorously defend ourselves against all three complaints.
On November 20, 2017, Eric Weiner, claiming to be a stockholder of the Company, filed a complaint on behalf
of stockholders who purchased the Company’s common stock between February 24, 2017 and November 3, 2017
(“Weiner Lawsuit”). The Weiner Lawsuit was filed as a class action in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District
of Tennessee, naming as defendants the Company, the Company's chief executive officer, chief financial officer
and a former executive who served as both chief accounting officer and interim chief financial officer. The
complaint alleges that the defendants violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
promulgated under the Exchange Act in making false and misleading statements and omissions related to the
United Press Release. The complaint seeks monetary damages on behalf of the purported class. On April 3,
2018, the Court entered an order appointing the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System as lead
plaintiff, designated counsel for the lead plaintiff, and established certain deadlines for the case. On June 4, 2018,
Plaintiff filed a first amended complaint. On August 3, 2018, the Company filed a motion to dismiss the first
amended complaint and a memorandum in support of a motion to dismiss seeking dismissal on grounds that the
first amended complaint fails to plead any actionable statement or omission (the “Motion to Dismiss”).
On January 26, 2018, Charles Denham, claiming to be a stockholder of the Company, filed a purported
shareholder derivative action, on behalf of the Company, in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of
Tennessee, naming the Company as a nominal defendant and the Company's chief executive officer, chief financial
officer, a former executive who served as both chief accounting officer and interim chief financial officer, current
directors and a former director of the Company, as defendants (“Denham Lawsuit”). The complaint asserts claims
for breach of fiduciary duty, waste, and unjust enrichment, largely tracking allegations in the Weiner Lawsuit. The
complaint further alleges that certain defendants engaged in insider trading. The plaintiff seeks monetary damages
on behalf of the Company, certain corporate governance and internal procedural reforms, and other equitable relieff.
On August 24, 2018, Andrew H. Allen, claiming to be a stockholder of the Company, filed a purported
shareholder derivative action, on behalf of the Company, in the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of
Tennessee, naming the Company as a nominal defendant and the Company’s chief executive officer, chief financial
officer, a former executive who served as both chief accounting officer and interim chief financial officer, together
with nine current or former directors, as defendants (the “Allen Lawsuit”). The complaint asserts claims for breach
of fiduciary duty and violations of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and the Exchange
Act against all individual defendants, largely tracking allegations in the Weiner Lawsuit and Denham Lawsuit, and
breach of fiduciary duty for insider trading against a former executive who served as both chief accounting officer
and interim chief financial officer and one of the directors of the Company. The plaintiff seeks to recover damages
on behalf of the Company, certain corporate governance and internal procedural reforms, and other equitable relief,
including restitution from the two defendants alleged to have engaged in insider trading from all unlawfully obtained
profits. On October 15, 2018, the Allen Lawsuit and the Denham Lawsuit were consolidated by stipulation, and the
consolidated case was stayed pending entry of an order resolving the Motion to Dismiss filed in the Weiner Lawsuit.
Otherr
Additionally, from time to time, we are subject to contractual disputes, claims and legal proceedings that arise
from time to time in the ordinary course of our business. Some of the legal proceedings pending against us as of
the date of this report are expected to be covered by insurance policies. As these matters are subject to inherent
uncertainties, our view of these matters may change in the future.
11. Fair Value Measurements
We account for certain assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be
received upon sale of an asset or paid upon transfer off a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, assuming the transaction occurs in the principal or most advantageous
market for that asset or liability.
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Fair Value Hierarchy
The hierarchy below lists three levels of fair value based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair
value are observable in the market. We categorize each of our fair value measurements in one of these three levels
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. These levels are:
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active; and model-based valuation techniques in which all
significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be corroborated by observable market
data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and
Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and typically reflect
management's estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis
We measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in the fourth quarter of the year, including the
following:
x

reporting units measured at fair value as part of a goodwill impairment test; and

x

indefinite-lived intangible assets measured at fair value for impairment assessment.

Each of these assets above is classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.
During the fourth quarter of 2018, we reviewed goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level (operating
segment or one level below an operating segment). We have a single reporting unit. The fair value of a reporting
unit is the price that would be received upon a sale of the unit as a whole in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. We estimated the fair value of the reporting unit based on our market
capitalization and compared such fair value to the carrying value of the reporting unit. Because the fair value of the
reporting unit exceeded its carrying amount, we determined that the carrying value of goodwill was not impaired.
Also during the fourth quarter of 2018, we estimated the fair value of our indefinite-lived intangible asset, a
tradename, using a present value technique, which required management's estimate of future revenues attributable
to this tradename, estimation of the long-term growth rate and royalty rate for this revenue, and determination of
our weighted average cost of capital. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the
estimate of fair value for the tradename. We determined that the carrying value of the tradename was not impaired
based upon the impairment review.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
As described in Note 9, the Cash Convertible Notes Hedges and Cash Conversion Derivative were settled
upon their maturity on July 2, 2018 and therefore had a value of $0 at December 31, 2018. At December 31, 2017,
the fair values of the Cash Convertible Notes Hedges and the Cash Conversion Derivative were measured using
Level 3 inputs because these instruments were not actively traded. The Cash Convertible Notes Hedges and the
Cash Conversion Derivative were designed such that changes in their fair values would offset one another, with
minimal impact to the consolidated statements of operations.
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The following table presents our financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis using
unobservable inputs (Level 3):

(In thousands)
Cash Convertible Notes Hedges
(Assets)
Cash Conversion Derivative
(Liabilities)

Balance at
Purchases Settlements Gains (Losses) Balance at
December 31, of Level 3 of Level 3
Included in
December 31,
2017
Instruments Instruments
Earnings
2018
$

134,079 $

—$

(134,079)

—

(141,246) $
141,246

7,167 $
(7,167)

—
—

The gains and losses included in earnings noted above represent the change in the fair value of these financial
instruments and were recorded in the consolidated statements of operations as selling, general and administrative
expenses.
Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments
In addition to the Cash Convertible Notes Hedges and the Cash Conversion Derivative, the estimated fair
values of which are disclosed above, the estimated fair value of each class of financial instruments at December
31, 2018 was as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents – The carrying amount of $1.9 million approximates fair value because of the short
maturity of those instruments (less than three months).
Debt – The estimated fair value of outstanding borrowings under the Credit Agreement, which includes a
revolving credit facility and a term loan facility (see Note 9), are determined based on the fair value hierarchy as
discussed above.
The revolving credit facility and the term loan facility are not actively traded and therefore are classified as
Level 2 valuations based on the market for similar instruments. The estimated fair value is based on the maximum
of the prices set by the issuing bank given current market conditions and is not necessarily indicative of the amount
we could realize in a current market exchange. The estimated fair value and carrying amount of outstanding
borrowings under the Credit Agreement at December 31, 2018 were $30.1 million and $30.5 million, respectively.
12. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
As of December 31, 2018, we did not hold any derivative instruments or hedges. Historically, we used derivative
instruments to manage risks related to interest (through December 30, 2016), the Cash Convertible Notes (which
matured and were repaid on July 2, 2018), and, prior to the sale of the TPHS business, foreign currencies. We
account for derivatives in accordance with ASC Topic 815, which establishes accounting and reporting standards
requiring that certain derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured
at fair value. Additionally, changes in the derivative's fair value will be recognized currently in earnings unless
specific hedge accounting criteria are met. We do not execute transactions or hold derivative financial instruments
for trading or other purposes.
Derivative Instruments Not Designated
g
as Hedging
g g Instruments
The Cash Conversion Derivative and Cash Convertible Notes Hedges were settled on July 2, 2018 in
conjunction with the maturity of the Cash Convertible Notes. They did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment
under U.S. GAAP and were measured at fair value, with gains and losses recognized immediately in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss). These derivative instruments did not have a material
impact on our consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017.
The Cash Conversion Derivative was accounted for as a derivative liability and carried at fair value. In order to
offset the risk associated with the Cash Conversion Derivative, we entered into Cash Convertible Notes Hedges,
which were cash-settled and were intended to reduce our exposure to potential cash payments that we would be
required to make if holders elected to convert the Cash Convertible Notes at a time when our stock price exceeded
the conversion price. The Cash Convertible Notes Hedges were accounted for as a derivative asset and carried at
fair value.
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The gains and losses resulting from a change in fair values of the Cash Conversion Derivative and the Cash
Convertible Notes Hedges are reported in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss).
Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands)
Cash Convertible Notes Hedges:
Net unrealized gain
Cash Conversion Derivative:
Net unrealized loss

2018
$
$

7,167

Statements of Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Classification

2017
$

85,718

(7,167) $

Selling, general and administrative expense

(85,718) Selling, general and administrative expense

The estimated gross fair values of derivative instruments at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were
as follows:
(In thousands)
Assets:
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Cash convertible notes hedges, current
Liabilities:
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Cash conversion derivative, current

December 31, December 31,
2018
2017

$

—$

134,079

$

—$

134,079

See Note 11 for more information on fair value measurements.
13. Leases
We maintain operating lease agreements principally for our office spaces. We lease approximately 264,000
square feet of office space for our corporate headquarters in Franklin, Tennessee pursuant to an agreement that
commenced in March 2008 and expires in February 2023. Approximately 221,000 square feet of such space is
subleased to other tenants. We also lease approximately 92,000 square feet of office space in Chandler, Arizona,
and approximately 6,000 square feet of office space in Ashburn, Virginia. The Chandler, Arizona lease began in
April 2009 and expires in April 2020.
Our corporate office lease agreement in Tennessee contains escalation clauses and provides for two renewal
options of five years each at then prevailing market rates. The base rent for the initial 15-year term ranges from
$4.3 million to $6.6 million per year over the term of the lease. The landlord provided a tenant improvement
allowance equal to approximately $10.7 million. We record leasehold improvement incentives as deferred rent and
amortize them as reductions to rent expense over the lease term.
Most of our operating leases include escalation clauses, some of which are fixed amounts, and some of which
reflect changes in price indices. We recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Certain
operating leases contain renewal options to extend the lease for additional periods. For the years ended December
31, 2018, 2017, and 2016, rent expense under lease agreements, net of sublease income, was approximately $2.7
million, $2.5 million, and $4.2 million, respectively. Our capital lease obligations are included in long-term debt and
the current portion of long-term debt.
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The following table summarizes our future minimum lease payments, net of total cash receipts from subleases
of $23.7 million, under all non-cancelable operating leases for each of the next five years and thereafter. As of
December 31, 2018, future minimum lease payments under capital leases were not material.
(In thousands)
Year ending December 31,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024 and thereafter
Total minimum lease payments

Operating
Leases
$
4,022
2,040
910
827
136
—
$
7,935

14. Share-Based Compensation
We currently have three types of share-based awards outstanding to ourr employees and directors: stock
options, restricted stock units, and market stock units. We believe that our share-based awards align the interests
of our employees and directors with those of our stockholders.
We grant options under these plans at fair value on the date of grant. The options generally vest over three or
four years based on service conditions and expire ten years from the date of grant. Restricted stock units generally
vest over three or four years. Market stock units granted during 2016 and 2015 have a multi-year performance
period ending in 2019 and 2018, respectively, and vest at the end of the three-year performance period based on
total shareholder return.
We recognize share-based compensation expense for options and restricted stock units on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period. We account for forfeitures as they occur. We recognize share-based compensation
expense for the market stock units if the requisite service period is rendered, even if the market condition is never
satisfied. All awards generally provide for accelerated vesting upon a change in control or normal or early
retirement (as defined in the applicable equity award agreement or stock incentive plan). At December 31, 2018,
we had reserved approximately 1.2 million shares for future equity grants under our stock incentive plan.
Following are certain amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for share-based
compensation arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016. We did not capitalize any
share-based compensation costs during these periods.

(In millions)
Total share-based compensation
Share-based compensation included in cost of services
Share-based compensation included in selling, general and
administrative expenses
Share-based compensation included in restructuring and related
charges
Share-based compensation included in discontinued operations(1)
Total income tax benefit recognized
(1)

Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2018
2017
2016
$
6.1 $
6.7 $
17.5
2.3
2.2
1.2
3.8

4.4

5.9

—
—
1.6

0.1
—
2.6

0.3
10.1
2.9

Includes the acceleration of vesting in 2016 of all unvested stock options, market stock units and restricted stock
units held by two former senior executives as of the Closing who had accepted employment with Sharecare.

In connection with the sale of the TPHS business, we modified approximately 92,000 options, 396,000
restricted stock units, and 75,000 market stock units by accelerating the vesting dates to July 31, 2016 (the date on
which the sale of the TPHS business was consummated) for approximately 100 employees of the TPHS business.
This resulted in share-based compensation expense of $7.4 million, all of which is included in discontinued
operations for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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As of December 31, 2018, there was $4.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
share-based compensation arrangements granted under the stock incentive plans. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.2 years.
Stock Options
We use a lattice-based binomial option valuation model ("lattice binomial model") to estimate the fair values of
stock options. We base expected volatility on historical volatility due to the low volume of traded options on our
stock. The expected term of options granted is derived from the output of the lattice binomial model and represents
the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. We used historical data to estimate
expected option exercise and post-vesting employment termination behavior within the lattice binomial model.
The following table sets forth the weighted average grant-date fair values of options and the weighted average
assumptions we used to develop the fair value estimates for the year ended December 31, 2018. There were no
stock options granted during fiscal 2017 or 2016.
Year Ended
December 31,
2018
Weighted average grant-date fair value
of options per share
$
Assumptions:
Expected volatility
Expected dividends
Expected term (in years)
Risk-free rate

20.21

56.2%
—
6.7
2.8%

A summary of options as of December 31, 2018 and the activity during the year then ended is presented below:

Options
Outstanding at January 1, 2018
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired
Outstanding at December 31, 2018
Exercisable at December 31, 2018

Weighted Weighted
Average
Average
Exercise Remaining Aggregate
Shares
Price Contractual Intrinsic Value
(In thousands) Per Share
Term
(In thousands)
507 $
12.98
86
37.94
(156)
12.28
(6)
39.45
—
—
431 $
17.83
4.4 $
4,045
351 $
13.29
3.3 $
4,045

The total intrinsic value, which represents the difference between the market price of the underlying common
stock and the option's exercise price, of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and
2016 was $3.9 million, $10.5 million, and $10.2 million, respectively.
Cash received from option exercises under all share-based payment arrangements during 2018 was $1.9
million. The actual tax benefit realized during 2018 for the tax deductions from option exercise totaled $1.0 million.
We issue new shares of common stock upon exercise of stock options or vesting of restricted stock units and
market stock units.
Nonvested Shares
The fair value of restricted stock units is determined based on the closing bid price of the Company's common
stock on the grant date. The weighted average grant-date fair value of restricted stock units granted during the
years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 was $38.12, $32.06, and $12.37, respectively. The fair value of
market stock units is determined based on the closing bid price of the Company's common stock on the grant date,
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except that the Monte Carlo simulation valuation model is used to determine the fair value of market stock units
with a market condition. The weighted average grant-date fairr value of all market stock units granted during fiscal
2016 was $10.67. No market stock units were granted during 2018 or 2017.
The two tables below set forth a summary of our nonvested shares as of December 31, 2018 as well as activity
during the year then ended. The total grant-date fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31,
2018, 2017, and 2016 was $7.6 million, $5.7 million, and $13.9 million, respectively.
The following table shows a summary of our restricted stock units as of December 31, 2018 as well as activity
during the year then ended:
Restricted Stock Units
WeightedAverage
Shares
Grant Date
(In thousands) Fair Value
572 $
17.60
74
38.12
(339 )
16.26
(36 )
24.07
271 $
24.07

Nonvested at January 1, 2018
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Nonvested at December 31, 2018

The following table shows a summary of our market stock units as of December 31, 2018 as well as activity
during the year then ended:

Nonvested at January 1, 2018
Granted
Shares adjustment for above-target performance (1)
Vested
Forfeited
Nonvested at December 31, 2018

Market Stock Units
WeightedAverage
Shares
Grant Date
(In thousands) Fair Value
373 $
9.01
—
—
185
6.80
(474 )
6.80
(39 )
14.76
45 $
18.25

(1) Represents the number of shares earned in excess off target for certain market stock units that vested
during the year. These awards were reported at the target number of shares when granted.
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15. Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016:
(In thousands except per share data)
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations attributable to Tivity Health,
Inc. - numerator for earnings per share
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to
Tivity Health, Inc. - numerator for earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) attributable to Tivity Health, Inc. - numerator for
earnings (loss) per share

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
$

97,902

$

901
$

Denominator:
Shares used for basic income (loss) per share
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock units
outstanding:
Non-qualified stock options
Restricted stock units
Warrants related to Cash Convertible Notes
Market stock units
Shares used for diluted income (loss) per share

98,803

61,230

$

2,485
$

63,715

56,091
(185,202)

$

(129,111)

40,078

39,357

36,999

264
299
2,013
419
43,073

436
549
1,709
496
42,547

344
538
—
194
38,075

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Tivity Health, Inc. - basic:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss) (1)

$
$
$

2.44
0.02
2.47

$
$
$

1.56
0.06
1.62

$
$
$

1.52
(5.01)
(3.49)

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Tivity Health, Inc. diluted:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)

$
$
$

2.27
0.02
2.29

$
$
$

1.44
0.06
1.50

$
$
$

1.47
(4.86)
(3.39)

Dilutive securities outstanding not included in the computation of
earnings (loss) per share because their effect is anti-dilutive:
Non-qualified stock options
Restricted stock units
Warrants related to Cash Convertible Notes
(1)

56
36
—

4
12
—

708
333
7,707

Figures may not add due to rounding.

Market stock units outstanding are considered contingently issuable shares, and certain of these market stock
units were excluded from the calculations of diluted earnings per share for all periods presented because the
performance criteria had not been met as of the end of the reporting periods.

59

16. Accumulated OCI
There were no changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (“OCI”) for the year ended
December 31, 2018. The following table summarizes the changes in accumulated OCI, net of tax, for the year
ended December 31, 2017:

(In thousands)
Accumulated OCI, net of tax, as of January 1, 2017
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications, net of tax
of $225
Amounts reclassified from accumulated OCI, net of tax of $0
Accumulated OCI, net of tax, as of December 31, 2017
(1)

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments
$
(4,502)

$

1,458
3,044
—

(1)

This amount was reclassified out of accumulated OCI to gain (loss) on discontinued operations during the year
ended December 31, 2017 and had a tax effect of $0.

There were no reclassifications out of accumulated OCI to income from continuing operations for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
17. Segment Disclosures and Concentrations of Risk
During 2018 and 2017, we had one operating and reportable segment. Therefore, all required segment
information can be found in the consolidated financial statements. Long-lived assets and revenue from external
customers attributable to our operations in the United States accounted for 100% of our consolidated long-lived
assets and revenues as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
During 2018, we had three customers that each accounted for 10% or more of our revenues and individually
comprised approximately 20.0%, 14.6%, and 10.0%, respectively, of our revenues for 2018. No other customer
accounted for 10% or more of our revenues in 2018. In addition, at December 31, 2018, we had two customers that
each accounted for 10% of more of our accounts receivable, net and individually comprised approximately 26% and
13%, respectively, of our accounts receivable, net at December 31, 2018.
During 2017, we had two customers that each accounted for 10% or more of our revenues and individually
comprised approximately 20.3% and 17.4%, respectively, off our revenues for 2017. No other customer accounted
for 10% or more of our revenues in 2017. In addition, at December 31, 2017, we had two customers that each
accounted for 10% of more of our accounts receivable, net and individually comprised approximately 31% and
11%, respectively, of our accounts receivable, net at December 31, 2017.
18. Pending Acquisition of Nutrisystem
On December 9, 2018, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Nutrisystem, Inc. (“Nutrisystem”) and Sweet Acquisition, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tivity Health (“Merger
Sub”). The Merger Agreement provides, among other things, that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set
forth therein, Merger Sub will merge with and into Nutrisystem, with Nutrisystem surviving as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tivity Health (the “Merger”).
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the effective time of the Merger (the “Effective
Time”), each share of common stock, par value $.001 per share, of Nutrisystem issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than shares as to which appraisal rights have been properly
exercised and certain other excluded shares) will be converted into the right to receive (i) $38.75 in cash, without
interest, and (ii) 0.2141 shares of common stock of Tivity Health, with cash payable in lieu of fractional shares of
common stock of Tivity Health. The Merger is expected to be completed during the first quarter of 2019 and is
subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions including the adoption of the Merger Agreement by
Nutrisystem’s stockholders.
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In connection with the Merger Agreement, on December 9, 2018, Tivity Health entered into a debt commitment
letter and corresponding fee letters (the “Debt Commitment Letter”) with Credit Suisse AG (“CS”), and Credit Suisse
Loan Funding LLC (“CSLF”). On December 21, 2018, December 26, 2018, December 27, 2018, December 31,
2018 and January 4, 2019, the Debt Commitment Letter was amended to add SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc.
(“STRH”), SunTrust Bank (“SunTrust”), Citigroup Global Markets Inc., on behalf of itself and Citibank, N.A., Citicorp
USA, Inc., Citicorp North America, Inc. and affiliates thereof, (“CGMI”), Citizens Bank, N.A. (“Citizens”), Fifth Third
Bank (“Fifth Third”), Regions Bank (“Regions Bank”), Regions Capital Markets, a division of Regions Bank,
(“Regions Capital Markets”), and Goldman Sachs Bank USA, together with its affiliates, including Goldman Sachs
Lending Partners LLC, (“GS,” and collectively with CS, CSLF, STRH, SunTrust, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third,
Regions Bank, Regions Capital Markets and each of their respective affiliates, the “Commitment Parties”), as
Commitment Parties under the Debt Commitment Letter and to adjust correspondingly each Commitment Party’s
commitment with respect to the financing contemplated thereby.
Under the Debt Commitment Letter, among other things, CSLF, STRH, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions
Capital Markets and GS have committed to arrange, and CS, SunTrust, CGMI, Citizens, Fifth Third, Regions Bank
and GS have committed to provide, subject to terms and conditions set forth in the Debt Commitment Letter, a
senior secured term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of $1,210,000,000 and a senior secured
revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of $125,000,000 (collectively, the “Financing”). The
Financing will be secured by a first priority security interest and lien on substantially all of the assets of Tivity Health
and its wholly-owned material domestic subsidiaries.
The Commitment Parties’ commitments pursuant to the Debt Commitment Letter are subject to various
conditions, including consummation of the Merger in accordance with the Merger Agreement; the negotiation and
execution of definitive documentation consistent with the Debt Commitment Letter; delivery of certain audited,
unaudited and pro forma financial statements; the absence of a material adverse effect on Nutrisystem after
December 9, 2018; the accuracy of representations and warranties of Nutrisystem in the Merger Agreement and
specified representations and warranties of Tivity Health to be set forth in the definitive loan documents; the
repayment of all outstanding indebtedness and other obligations of Tivity Health and Nutrisystem under their
existing credit facilities; and other customary closing conditions.
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19. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2018
Revenues
Gross margin
Income before income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations,
net of income tax
Net income

First
$ 149,930
40,678
28,493
21,336

Second
$ 151,865
41,848
30,352
22,683

Third
$ 151,467
43,349
34,386
25,357

Fourth (1)
$ 153,037
43,601
31,717
28,526

—
21,336

901
23,584

—
25,357

—
28,526

Earnings per share – basic:
Continuing operations (2)
Discontinued operations (2)
Net income (2) (3)

$
$
$

0.54
—
0.54

$
$
$

0.57
0.02
0.59

$
$
$

0.63
—
0.63

$
$
$

0.70
—
0.70

Earnings per share – diluted:
Continuing operations (2)
Discontinued operations (2)
Net income (2) (3)

$
$
$

0.49
—
0.49

$
$
$

0.52
0.02
0.54

$
$
$

0.59
—
0.59

$
$
$

0.67
—
0.67

(In thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2017
Revenues
Gross margin
Income before income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income tax
Net income

First
$ 140,970
37,914
24,852
15,481

Second
$ 138,914
39,195
26,800
17,240

(220)
15,261

Third
$ 137,703
42,465
30,289
19,886

(3,673 )
13,567

Fourth (4)
$ 139,354
38,970
22,843
8,624

6,519
26,405

(141)
8,483

Earnings (loss) per share – basic:
Continuing operations (2)
Discontinued operations (2)
Net income (2) (3)

$
$
$

0.40 $
(0.01) $
0.39 $

0.44 $
(0.09 ) $
0.35 $

0.50
0.17
0.67

$
$
$

0.22
(0.00)
0.21

Earnings (loss) per share – diluted:
Continuing operations (2)
Discontinued operations (2)
Net income (2) (3)

$
$
$

0.38 $
(0.01) $
0.38 $

0.41 $
(0.09 ) $
0.32 $

0.46
0.15
0.61

$
$
$

0.20
0.00
0.20

(1)

During the fourth quarter of 2018, we incurred $3.3 million of project costs in connection with potential and
pending acquisitions, which were recorded to selling, general, and administrative expenses. In addition, our
effective tax rate for the fourth quarter of 2018 of 10.1% was lower than our statutory rate primarily due to
positive tax benefits of $4.6 million related to the vesting of stock-based compensation awards during the
quarter.

(2)

We calculated earnings per share for each of the quarters based on the weighted average number of shares
and dilutive securities outstanding for each period. Accordingly, the sum of the quarters may not necessarily be
equal to the full year income per share.

(3)

Figures may not add due to rounding.
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(4)

The Tax Act was signed into law during the fourth quarter of 2017, and we incurred a non-cash charge of $7.4
million during the quarter related to both the re-measurement of our deferred tax assets to the lower tax rate
and the requirement to recalculate the impact of repatriation of our foreign earnings, which occurred earlier in
the year, under provisions of the new law.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer have reviewed and evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
promulgated under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2018. Based on that evaluation, the principal executive
officer and principal financial officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are
effective. They are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that
it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the
Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the
Company's management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.
Management has performed an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the
"COSO framework"), and believes that the COSO framework is a suitable framework for such an evaluation.
Based on this assessment, management has concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of December 31, 2018.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Company's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, has issued an attestation report on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting, which is included in this report.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter
ended December 31, 2018 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Information concerning our directors, director nomination procedures, audit committee, audit committee
financial experts, code of ethics, and compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act will be included under the
headings "Election of Directors," "Code of Conduct," "Corporate Governance," and "Section 16(a) Beneficial
Reporting Compliance" in our Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23,
2019 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, information concerning our executive officers is included in
Part I of this report, under the caption "Executive Officers of the Registrant."
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information required by this item will be included under the headings "Executive Compensation" and "Director
Compensation" in our Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23, 2019
and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Information required by this item will be included under the headings "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management" in our Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May
23, 2019 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table summarizes, as of December 31, 2018, certain information concerning the Company's
equity compensation plans under which equity securities of the Company are currently authorized for issuance.

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders
Equity compensation plans not approved
by stockholders
Total

Number of Shares
Number of Shares
Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upon
Future Issuance Under
Exercise of
Weighted-Average Equity Compensation Plans
Outstanding
Exercise Price of
(Excluding Shares
Options, Warrants Outstanding Options,
Reflected
and Rights,
Warrants and
in First Column),
in thousands (1)
Rights (2)
in thousands
747 $

17.83

1,173

—
747 $

—
17.83

—
1,173

(1)

Represents 431,000 stock options, 271,000 restricted stock units, and 45,000 market stock units outstanding
under the Company’s Amended and Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan.

(2)

The weighted average exercise price does not take into account the shares issuable upon vesting of
outstanding unvested restricted stock units and market stock units, which have no exercise price. The weighted
average remaining contractual term of the outstanding stock options is 4.4 years.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Information required by this item will be included under the heading "Corporate Governance" in our Proxy Statement
for the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23, 2019 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Information required by this item will be included under the heading "Ratification of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm" in our Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23,
2019 and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
1. The financial statements filed as part of this report are included in Part II, Item 8 of this report.
2. We have omitted all Financial Statement Schedules because they are not required under the instructions to the
applicable accounting regulations of the SEC or the information to be set forth therein is included in the financial
statements or in the notes thereto.
3. Exhibits
b ts
2.1

Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated July 27, 2016 by and among Sharecare, Inc.,
Healthways SC, LLC and Healthways, Inc. [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 2, 2016, File No. 000-19364]

2.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 9, 2018, by and among the Company,
Nutrisystem, Inc. and Sweet Acquisition, Inc. [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 10, 2018, File No. 000-19364]

3.1

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q
of the Company's fiscal quarter ended February 29, 2008, File No. 000-19364]

3.2

Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, dated as of October 10,
2013 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 2013, File No. 000-19364]

3.3

Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, dated as of January 4,
2017 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 10, 2017, File No. 000-19364]

3.4

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 10, 2017, File No. 000-19364]

4.1

Article IV of the Company's Restated Certificate of Incorporation (included in Exhibit 3.1)

4.2

Indenture dated as of July 8, 2013 between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8,
2013, File No. 000-19364]

4.3

Form of 1.50% Cash Convertible Senior Note due 2018 (included in Exhibit 4.2)

10.1

Office Lease dated as of May 4, 2006 between the Company and Highwoods/Tennessee Holdings, L.P.
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 5,
2006, File No. 000-19364]

10.2

Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated June 8, 2012 between the
Company and SunTrust Bank as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.as Documentation
Agent, and U.S. Bank National Association and Fifth Third Bank as Co-Syndication Agents [incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 11, 2012, File No. 00019364]

10.3

First Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated
February 5, 2013 between the Company and SunTrust Bank as Administrative Agent [incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 7, 2013,
File No. 000-19364]
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10.4

Second Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated
March 15, 2013 between the Company and SunTrust Bank as Administrative Agent [incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2013,
File No. 000-19364]

10.5

Third Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement and First
Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Subsidiary Guarantee Agreement [incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 1, 2013, File No. 00019364]

10.6

Fourth Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated April
14, 2014 between the Company and SunTrust Bank as Administrative Agent [incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2014, File No. 000-19364]

10.7

Fifth Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated
December 29, 2014 between the Company and SunTrust Bank as Administrative Agent [incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 30, 2014,
File No. 000-19364]

10.8

Sixth Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended June 30,
2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.9

Seventh Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October
29, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.10

Eighth Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 4,
2016, File No. 000-19364]

10.11

Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated April 21, 2017 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 27, 2017, File No. 000-19364]

10.12

Call Option Transaction Confirmation dated as of July 1, 2013 between the Company and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, National Association, London Branch [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2013, File No. 000-19364]

10.13

Amendment to Call Option Transaction Confirmation dated as of July 11, 2013 between the Company
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, London Branch [incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 16, 2013, File No. 000-19364]

10.14

Call Option Transaction Confirmation dated as of July 1, 2013 between the Company and Morgan
Stanley & Co. International plc [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2013, File No. 000-19364]

10.15

Amendment to Call Option Transaction Confirmation dated as of July 11, 2013 between the Company
and Morgan Stanley & Co. Internal plc [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 16, 2013, File No. 000-19364]

10.16

Base Warrants Confirmation dated as of July 1, 2013 between the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
National Association, London Branch [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2013, File No. 000-19364]

10.17

Additional Warrants Confirmation dated as of July 11, 2013 between the Company and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association, London Branch [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 16, 2013, File No. 000-19364]
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10.18

Base Warrants Confirmation dated as of July 1, 2013 between the Company and Morgan Stanley & Co.
International plc [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 8, 2013, File No. 000-19364]

10.19

Additional Warrants Confirmation dated as of July 11, 2013 between the Company and Morgan Stanley &
Co. International plc [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form
8-K dated July 16, 2013, File No. 000-19364]

10.20

Amendment to Warrants Transaction, dated as of September 25, 2018, between Tivity Health, Inc. and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, London Branch [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Form 10-Q of the Company’s fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2018, File No. 000-19364]

10.21

Amendment to Warrants Transaction, dated as of September 26, 2018, between Tivity Health, Inc. and
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q of the
Company’s fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2018, File No. 000-19364]

Management Contracts and Compensatory Plans
10.22

Amended and Restated Corporate and Subsidiary Capital Accumulation Plan [incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.25 to Form 10-K of the Company's fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, File No. 00019364]

10.23

Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2012 between the Company and Peter Choueiri [incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2012,
File No. 000-19364]

10.24

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated September 2, 2014 between the Company and Peter
Choueiri [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 2014, File No. 000-19364]

10.25

Employment Agreement dated July 29, 2012 between the Company and Mary Flipse [incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2012,
File No. 000-19364]

10.26

2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-8 dated June 25, 2014, Registration No. 333-197025]

10.27

2007 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Form 10-K of the
Company's fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, File No. 000-19364]

10.28

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Company's 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Form 10-K of the Company's fiscal year ended August 31,
2007, File No. 000-19364]

10.29

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Company's 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Form 10-K of the Company's fiscal year ended August 31,
2007, File No. 000-19364]

10.30

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (for Directors) under the Company's 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended
June 30, 2010, File No. 000-19364]

10.31

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Directors) under the Company's 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter
ended June 30, 2010, File No. 000-19364]

10.32

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Company's 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended March 31,
2012, File No. 000-19364]
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10.33

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Company's 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended March 31,
2012, File No. 000-19364]

10.34

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Company's 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Form 10-K of the Company's fiscal year ended December
31, 2012, File No. 000-19364]

10.35

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Company's 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Form 10-K of the Company's fiscal year ended December
31, 2012, File No. 000-19364]

10.36

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement (for Executive Officers) under the Company's
2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q of the Company's
fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2014, File No. 000-19364]

10.37

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Executive Officers) under the Company's 2014
Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 2014, File No. 000-19364]

10.38

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement (for Directors) under the Company's 2014 Stock
Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter
ended June 30, 2014, File No. 000-19364]

10.39

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Directors) under the Company's 2014 Stock
Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter
ended June 30, 2014, File No. 000-19364]

10.40

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Executive Officers) for November 1, 2016 under the
Company's Amended and Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46
to Form 10-K of the Company's fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, File No. 000-19364]

10.41

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Directors) under the Company's Amended and
Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q of the
Company's fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.42

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Directors) under the Company's Amended and
Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q of the
Company's fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2016, File No. 000-19364]

10.43

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Executive Officers) One-Year Cliff Vesting under the
Company's Amended and Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.44

Tivity Health, Inc. Amended and Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit
99.1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated May 19, 2015, Registration No. 333204313]

10.45

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Executive Officers) for July 1, 2015 under the
Company's Amended and Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Form 10-Q of the Company's fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.46

Employment Agreement, dated August 3, 2015, between Healthways, Inc. and Donato Tramuto
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 7,
2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.47

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Mr. Tramuto [incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 7, 2015, File No. 000-19364]
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10.48

Form of Market Stock Unit Award Agreement for Mr. Tramuto [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 7, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.49

Form of Market Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Company’s Amended and Restated 2014 Stock
Incentive Plan for September 24, 2015 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 28, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.50

Revised Form of Market Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Company’s Amended and Restated
2014 Stock Incentive Plan for September 24, 2015 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.70 to Form
10-K of the Company's fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.51

Form of Market Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Company’s Amended and Restated 2014 Stock
Incentive Plan for March 31, 2016 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q of the
Company's fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2016, File No. 000-19364]

10.52

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Company’s Amended and Restated 2014
Stock Incentive Plan (for Executive Officers and Other Senior Officers) for September 24, 2015
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 28, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.53

Revised Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Executive Officers and Other Senior
Officers) for September 24, 2015 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.73 to Form 10-K of the
Company's fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, File No. 000-19364]

10.54

Form of Director Indemnification Agreement [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 2, 2016, File No. 000-19364]

10.55

Employment Agreement, dated May 22, 2017, between Tivity Health, Inc. and Adam C. Holland
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 25,
2017, File No. 000-19364]

10.56

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement (for Executive Officers) under the Company's
2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q of the Company’s
fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2018, File No. 000-19364]

10.57

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (for Directors) under the Company’s Amended and
Restated 2014 Stock Incentive Plan [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q of the
Company’s fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2018, File No. 000-19364]

10.58

Offer of Employment Letter between the Company and Ryan Wagers dated as of September 14, 2018
[incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q of the Company’s fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 2018, File No. 000-19364]

21

Subsidiary List

23

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

31.1

Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 made by Donato Tramuto, Chief
Executive Officer

31.2

Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 made by Adam Holland, Chief
Financial Officer

32

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002 made by Donato Tramuto, Chief Executive Officer, and Adam Holland, Chief Financial
Officer

101.INS XBRL Instance Document
69

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
(b) Exhibits

Refer to Item 15(a)(3) above.
(c) Not applicable
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Item 16. Form 10-K Summary
None.
SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
TIVITY HEALTH, INC.
February 26, 2019

By: //s/ Donato J. Tramuto
Donato J. Tramuto
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal
Executive Officer)

February 26, 2019

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

February 26, 2019

Controller and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal
Accounting Officer)

February 26, 2019

//s/ Kevin G. Wills
Kevin G. Wills

Chairman of the Board and Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Sara J. Finley
Sara J. Finley

Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Beth M. Jacob
Beth M. Jacob

Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Archelle Georgiou, M.D.
Archelle Georgiou, M.D.

Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Robert J. Greczyn, Jr.
Robert J. Greczyn, Jr.

Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Peter A. Hudson, M.D.
Peter A, Hudson, M.D.

Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Bradley S. Karro
Bradley S. Karro

Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Paul H. Keckley
Paul H. Keckley, Ph.D.

Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Lee A. Shapiro
Lee A. Shapiro

Director

February 26, 2019

//s/ Donato J. Tramuto
Donato J. Tramuto
//s/ Adam C. Holland
Adam C. Holland
//s/ Ryan Wagers
Ryan Wagers
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